
A.

Missouri Department of Natural Resources

AGENDA
Missouri Soil and Water Districts Commission

Lincoln University
South Campus Conference Center

Lorenzo Greene Hall
900 Leslie Boulevard, Suite C
Jefferson City, Missouri 65101

October 30,2013
9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

B. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
1. August 14,2013 Closed session
2. August 14, 2013 Open Session

C. MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
1. Department Update
2. Nutrient Loss Reduction Strategy

D. SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S
COMMENTS
1. FY14 Cost-Share/AgNPS SALT Fund Status
2. Supplemental Cost-Share Allocation
3. FY15 Cost-Share Needs Assessment
4. Health Insurance Update
5. Area Meeting Conservation Practices Summary
6. Pike SWCD Pilot Forestry Practice Update
7. Plan for the Future Subcommittees Updates
8. Our Missouri Waters Update
9. Missouri Association Soil and Water Conservation Districts 2012 Resolution

E. REQUESTSIREVIEW
1. Supervisor Appointments

(If a supervisor request is received in advance of meeting, 'it may be presented
to the commission at that meeting.)
A. Washington Soil and Water Conservation District

F. REPORTS
1. University of Missouri
2. Department of Conservation
3. Department of Agriculture
4. Natural Resources Conservation Service
5. Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts



G. PUBLIC COMMENTS

H. SUGGESTED DATE(S) OF NEXT MEETING(S)
Tentative meeting dates: December 16,2013

I. Lincoln University South Campus Tour

J. ADJOURNMENT

Those wishing to address the commission on any of the above issues need to contact a
program staff member, Christa Moody or sign up on the comment card at the commission
meeting.

If you have any questions regarding this meeting, special accommodation needs, or would
like a copy of any material provided at the commission meeting, please contact Christa
Moody at 573-751-1172.

Soil & Water Districts Commission may go into closed session at this meeting if such action
is approved by a majority vote of the commission members who constitute a quorum to
discuss legal, confidential, or privileged matters under § 610.021(1), RSMo 2000; personnel
actions under §610.021(3); personnel records or applications under §61O.021(13), records
under § 610.021 (14), or audit issues under § 610.021(17), which are otherwise protected
from disclosure by law.



I•l.)LINCOLNe University
SOUTH CAMPUS CONFERENCE CENTER

Lorenzo Greene Hall

900 Leslie Boulevard, Suite C, Jefferson City, MO 65101

Telephone: (573) 681-5206

DIRECTIONSTO SOUTH CAMPUS CONFERENCE CENTER

From Highway 54 East:

Take the Stadium Boulevard/Tanner Bridge Road exit. At the end, turn left onto Christy Drive. At the stop
light, turn right onto Stadium Boulevard. Proceed past the high school stadium on the left. At the
roundabout, turn right onto Leslie Boulevard. The next intersection is Leslie Boulevard and Chestnut Street
(there is no stop light/sign). Lorenzo Greene Hall is the first building on the right with a sign displayed in front.
A strip mall is located across the street. The South Campus Conference Center is in Suite C.

From Highway 54 West:

Take the Jefferson Street/Stadium Boulevard exit. At the end of the exit, turn right onto Jefferson Street. At
the stop light, turn right onto Stadium Boulevard. Proceed past the high school stadium on the left. At the
roundabout, turn right onto Leslie Boulevard. The next intersection is Leslie Boulevard and Chestnut Street
(there is no stop light/sign). Lorenzo Greene Hall is the first building on the right with a sign displayed in front.
A strip mall is located across the street. The South Campus Conference Center is in Suite C.

From Highway 50/63 Heading West:

Take the Clark Avenue exit. Turn left onto Clark Avenue. Clark Avenue turns into Moreau Drive. Proceed
approximately 1 mile and turn right onto Leslie Boulevard. Proceed about Yi mile and Lorenzo Greene Hall is
on the left before the intersection of Leslie Boulevard and Chestnut Street. If you reach the roundabout,
please return to Leslie Boulevard and it is the first building on the right. The South Campus Conference Center
is in Suite C.

From Highway 50/63 Heading East:

Take the Highway 50/63 exit (Lake of the Ozark/Fulton/Columbia), at the top, immediately turn right onto
Highway 54 West exit (Lake Ozark). Proceed about %of a mile and take the Jefferson Street exit. At the end
of the exit, turn right onto Jefferson Street. At the stop light, turn right onto Stadium Boulevard. Proceed past
the high school stadium on the left. At the roundabout, turn right onto Leslie Boulevard. The next
intersection is Leslie Boulevard and Chestnut Street (there is no stop light/sign). Lorenzo Greene Hall is the
first building on the right with a sign displayed in front. A strip mall is located across the street. The South
Campus Conference Center is in Suite C.



LORENZO GREENE HALL
SOUTH CAMPUS CONFERENCE CENTER MAP

De/Cerro

Ci
"..
i

,>.. >

Comrriunity
Park

~","»»>
$' > ~

"V Uncoln
University

<. . .

". '\,.

~ Jeffersoo City
HighSchool

.. ,

\"'"

I

GO<Xlallln

South Campus Conference Center Map- building is indicated with the purple star



ill Missouri Department of Natural Resources

MINUTES
MISSOURI SOIL AND WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION

Missouri State Fairgrounds
Lowell Mohler Assem~:~I:ationalGn~mory

Sedalia, Missouri ::::;.
August 14, 2013 .4:#" A~l~:».

. -"~::' ~&=»,..~ .,.~";..

COMMISSION M1!MBERS PRESENT: H. R~'';'~Gary V~~\;·
Bradley, and Richard Fordyce ,;#"';.. ". v :::::;..

~ ... ~;.....~~

EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS: Dr. JON HAGtE P~P~:;~E::tGR~CULT'J&:Judy
Grundler; BOB ZIEHMER, DEPT. OF CONS ~ifION: Chnt Dalbom;

~~-,
SARA PARKER PAULEY, DEPT. OF NATU ': ~::m.ESOURCES:Robert Stout;
DEAN THOMAS PAYNE, UN"\~' ITY OF MIS§~~:~avid Baker

.. ~:;,·;·;,,,:;,,."'9
'{ ";>;:-,. ~::;:'~9

ADVISORY MEMBERS PRESENT.f;J~Om ..$~TER Cg'NSERVATION
PROGRAM: Collee~Meredith; ATit~R~:~Y""'8:·_:. :~L's OFFICE: Tim Duggan;
NRCS: J.R. FloreS$?' ;. CD: KennYi--:hWVelace .. ,

.

.-§.:::......,~.;.... ....:::.. /?'
bZ::}" ,..~. "'h.~ . ,'01

STAFF J!1EMB!jlil~~!!ES : Christa ~R~~1.James Plassmeyer, Ken Struemph, Bill
WIlson, ColetteW~~.enb.;· Theresa Mue1~

x'\.>::~:"« •••:~::~: ..#:-'
~• ..;~~:":).~ .;0 .....~"';..;~

,.' "~~..:·c::'\; ~ ... ,.".. "..*::""
OTHER~{j." .~; .: .... ',', : DI ~m~TS: a iJnade: Diana Mayfield; Jefferson: George

":=:~elbach; . . '~~VRI 'W':: '. RTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES: Kurt
kmann, Va~1J.,~~per; ". ~ =-S:@URI FARM BUREAU: Kelly Smith; MSWCDEA:

.' Stratman; M~i::WCD:. verly Dometrorch; OTHER: Mrs. Barbara Gaw, Mrs.
"..~;..$~.~~->:.~ -I'C?"

Ma(Y:::.Btadley :~.::::::
~:~:;i:$~~· "t~~~~

.' , &1 '
A. RDDR

Chairman Ri' . '~~rdyce called the meeting to order, in Sedalia, Missouri, at the
Conference r09)tat 1:36 p.m. H. Ralph Gaw, Thomas Bradley, Gary Vandiver and
Richard Fordyce, were present, which made a quorum.

B. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
1. June 28, 2013 Minutes

Thomas Bradley made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 28,2013
Commission meeting. H. Ralph Gaw seconded the motion. When asked by the
chair, Gary Vandiver, H. Ralph Gaw, Thomas Bradley, and Richard Fordyce
voted in favor of the motion andthe motion carried unanimously.



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 2

2. July 15, 2013 Minutes
Gary Vandiver made a motion to approve the minutes of the July 15,2013
meeting. Thomas Bradley seconded the motion. When asked by the chair, Gary
Vandiver, H. Ralph Gaw, Thomas Bradley, and Richard Fordyce voted in favor of
the motion and the motion carried unanimously.

C.

D.

CLOSED SESSION
Thomas Bradley made a motion to go into closed session at 1:39 p.m. pursuant to statute,
Gary :randiver seconded the moti?n. A poll vote was ta~en. H:.:.illPh Gaw, Gary
Vandiver, Thomas Bradley and Richard Fordyce voted III f~~@10tthemotion. The
Commission adjourned into closed session. .::#t

*b'$>;: " ~~
Richard Fordyce reconvened to open session at 2: 1Qp~. Chai 7-••..••Fordyce thanked
Judy Grundler and other staff from Missouri DeR.#ti~n~;ofAgric :: .{*e for making
arrangements to allow the Commission to mey.t1furing the State Fair. ~;~it';.

{~~. ~~:~~~ -:~. .",. «-lib'" ..~.
H. Ralph Gaw stated that no formal actiorf~' ,~!;;1aken ~W.J1g the Closed ~~l~ion. Mr.
Gaw made a motion to absolve Mrs. Shirley Elf'" e. Q$:=th~~:0bligation to p1ty back the
Soil and Water Conservation Program the sum of .13. Thomas Bradley seconded
the motion. A poll vote was take1\t: .~ry Vandiver, T '0, ~ Bradley, H. Ralph Gaw and
Richard Fordyce voted in favor of":; . 'on and the mmil~n::farried unanimously.

~;>!"o. ....~..~"x-?"..
'S.-:?i::·'

H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to pro!t'bit D ·:;">".pr Haui~' Lehenbaur from
participating in anY.~Jl:. and Water Co\e Wi§)t1~under the Soil and Water
Districts Commi§.~mj: iction. Tho ';;". Bradley s..eM6nded the motion. A poll vote was

..~..-,,-.." v;.t..

taken. Gary V.. :··'iver, T ,s Bradley, ~~~alphGaw, and Richard Fordyce voted in
. and th~otion carriedw.Wmously.

~fi.~ »~~~
.:::4.~..". :-''':;,
~·;.;m"·, t;.~

....::;::~~'$:::-~::::;:;:; •., %.."':;;':,~~. ,8l\'&~:::-""
MI*~l§;:~~;EPA ENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
;~iK "'~;:~:~ \.

b~ ("vepartmem :.~~.~e. ''';;;;;&:). ;.::* .•
.;i;'·~::· eli Stout preset "-lIllfornt~~hon the Missouri Department ofNatural Resources

e :<i1.:::~in watershed' '. agem~ht planning, Our Missouri Waters. This has been a central
prioti~t.th.e depalj:dm.~::.·~t for the last year and a half. The goals of this effort are to look
at each~1l~.shed in ~~Jblistic and systematic way, beginning with an analysis of its
issues and~e.Uenge$~tnd to share information with all partners and stakeholders within
the departmeW·....· :;::;~nal agencies, and most critically with the citizens who live, work
and recreate inJ:f watershed. The citizens in each watershed will be able to identify their
priorities, and 'these priorities will be used as a basis for prioritizing the department's
resources to address the issues identified as most important.

This effort involves looking at the range of issues in the watershed, such as community
water and wastewater infrastructure, water supply needs and point and nonpoint source
pollution. The department is reaching out to everyone that has an interest in a watershed
to participate in this process to help identify where resources need to be directed, and the
agricultural sector is an important partner in the process. The Soil and Water
Conservation Program is one of the resources that the department has to address priorities



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 3

on agricultural lands in the watershed. The department appreciates the good working
relationship with the Soil and Water Conservation Districts and that they can participate
in this effort.

There are three summits this year, the first one was held in the Spring River, the second is
on September to" in Brunswick in the Lower Grand watershed, the final summit will be
in the Big River watershed on October 9th.

E.

F.

Judy Grundler encouraged those in agriculture to participate i~::~{~ summits.
;:3:::" ,,,~·w··Mr. Stout stressed that the Our Missouri Waters process ~:t.,\:?able state and federal

entities to work together with the same information ant.fJchli~~purceson the same
• " f:>' "*,.~priorities. ""::;:: ....;::.::::~:."

~ .~~~~ "'":";~:**~~

Richard Fordyce stated that the Soil and WateJ.:i@l;~~~ion prog":~~i"·.. the Soil and{oii7 11·~.........~~

Water Districts have been focused on agri~~!W!alland ~rd soil conserv'it'.. :vb-ich by its
very n~ture creates improved .water qualitf~~rd~c~~~nted to be su.r·· .....:):t involving
the Soil and Water Conservation Program wocl1c~ ..t 19:~u~e~an expectation to change the
scope of the program or the Commission and mo y from the things that have made
this program so popular and suc"", ful, Mr.Stout res :.: ....;..ed that we want bring
information to the table and get tit, .... ission's inputi:-:':;' ',?el:!? to address issues and
to share information in the watersh '::..' . ;:::W>" ;.:~.. ~.,~~_ @~.~ _~~~ _ ,7

'$'1 .•{:~;'''

MISSOURI f\~f:;'.~.:4}~YGEN~~L'SO#FICE
Tim Duggan &~.fd he ha::S~: updates. ,

.;:,s-:~.'»=» ';;':;~~ '*t.
,>' ""':::::»'9.. ,:;-,;. -..::",. .;<

~~.*.~' ''$l~'?-;'
~~ ~~h. V

SOIL "I'WAf4ig:~'X&WS~.M*fION PROGRAM DIRECTOR'S
r& '-;» ~.}:;;» ""'.:.;:.;;:•.:.,

C0"';';': , ',' ~:';:x:'" •...,.",. ,.' ~,...,..".i ....
~.;;~." , .. "".. ~::::~..::"

...:';"l~~} FY14 C)) -, ,,·;hare/il'~~.:,sAL T Fund Status
••.·.·.N.":. K S .».,~ ;.;.;.:;s,*.1::. F' 1Y (FY)14 C Sl d SALT fu d;:::····~:;:~::;:::.t:.. en truemt1i?~:k'resente:-!;!i::tlle isca ear ost- rare an n

·;:-.{<·...x "':-.x;::; ·x··
···:~%b~~atus. As of~pust 12:; 2013 there was $24,916,9~8 allocated; $7,289,362 .

- '::s:::abligated; andt*.l,278,328 paid of the FY14 cost-share funds.The FYI4:SALT
~~t"ware, as.ifAugust 12,2013, has $1,090,557 allocated, $315,762 obligated
and1;;t1~\?2!:Jiid. Currently there are 20 active projects across the state. The final

-':!\i'~'" "":'U,,,'"
projecr\ijiil the AgNPS SALT program will be completed in 2015 .

.#~

2. FY14 Cost-Share Fall Supplemental
Ken Struemph presented the proposed process and timeline for the FY14 cost
share supplemental allocations. Two supplemental allocations are proposed for
this fall. Both supplemental allocations would be directed towards the Grazing

- Management, Irrigation Management, Sensitive Areas, Animal Waste
Management, Sheet, Rill and Gully Erosion and Woodland Erosion resource
concerns. Nutrient and Pest is not included because the time frame to approve
applications is in April, so no additional funding is provided.



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 4

The first supplemental would be based on the obligated plus pending totals on the
Master Fund Status Report at the close of business on Tuesday, October 15,2013.

The second supplemental would be based on obligated only at the close of
business December 13,2013.

Sandy Stratman asked if the program staff would look at district funds to possibly
make the first supplemental earlier than October, for example Sheet 1Rill and
Gully for Maries Soil and Water Conservation District ~~CD) is currently all
obligated. This could possibly help several districts t5~i;~1i¥itihlJe implementing
conservation efforts. Colleen Meredith stated that.J:.qt~r.ogram staff did discuss a
September date but the districts and landowner§.{,.-:g{fl,\~ve been unprepared for
such an early supplemental, but the possibil~~~ an eai:l~tgPPlemental will be
looked at for next year. .;:A:» ":;" '~~~:;;..*v'· q-:::::", ~:::"'.

~~ .~

After discussion, Thomas Bradley~ a moti 1J to show supp·.. r~ue FY 14
Cost-Share Fall supplemental timefiff&D!:::..Ralph"~~w seconded th .:~:Otion. Gary
Vandiver, Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph d~~J;ld Uttd Fordyce v@fed in favor of
the motion and the motion carried unanim1f~::!:-,

%§%-. ~:e\...
3. FY13/14 Budget ~tl:l~":.;z, '{;;:. ~~.

~«~~:«>«"~'~ .:'\.. -:>
Colette Weckenborg presen~a~t~.:: ~ 114 Budge .'~~§te. The FY13 total
budget for the ~rogra~n is $5~55~~~ .~l.!?taI5~1>ended amount of
$44,103,164. Sixty-nine percerIt~o(M-;::L~~~~~, went to landowners and 31
percent ~!$~ _.... . and distric'llininistrati~;"costs.

4::/ "~.« l"~-;.....-'.1 -:;':x"": ,';0,

Ms.~*~~org pl~ented a chart'.£l..l.~)007 to 2013 showing the soils and water
sales tax Cl:i

V

.;~~its ...J;~~~!~l expen;ff:ures.
" y .;::::~ - "~·"«~:~~:;::~::*::«»-:~~z;::%~

.9~, «<t#. ~. "~:... .v;q,,=*;:~.:{::::;:: ../
.4.J.f!k. . .·4 Gov <~_:s recomnlentled budget totals $46,875,738. Of that amount it

-1ft is proj ::!:!?at im·:, . ent will go to landowners and 36 percent will support
>. :;;;. " program a':'~ :~istrict ".itns.

i*=~) '10%1:. ~~~::i'
..~~ ~~~\ ,~:..

4. ·~t~poperative 'i~rlcing Agreements
~-*.~nMere1\~ presented a~ u?date on t~e Cooperative WO~'king Agr.eement.

To':;, , 11 S~~l and Water Districts have signed the Cooperative Workmg
Agre ' ,t::tt=fid submitted by the deadline. Ms. Meredith also wanted to thank all

;+}'"

the distr.!,ts for sending them in.
{~~

5. Tech II Certification
Colleen Meredith presented the Technician II (Tech II) Certification update. The
Tech II Certification that is conducted by Lincoln University is currently being
revised to include training in specific areas, along with the testing. It is projected
to begin testing in November and the training in February. Training will include
grazing and nutrient management, and in addition some of the skills that are
needed for baseline certification will be incorporated in these trainings. Because
of the addition of training and other components into the contract, it is taking



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14, 2013
Page 5

longer to finalize the contract. The baseline test is planned to be offered up to four
times a year and the grazing and nutrient management test up to three times a
year. The tests will be held in Jefferson City but the training sessions will be held
regionally. The training will include field training and web-based modules.

G.

6. Area Meetings
Colleen Meredith presented the Area Meetings update. There were eight Area
meetings held around the state. Ms. Meredith listed the attendance at each area
meeting and stated that Jim Plassmeyer would be presel1t.mg a report at a future
Commission meeting on the compiled results from tq_.,t~ff.:t:9r the Future
Practices Presentations. Richard Fordyce stated he.:£liite.nded two of the meeting. ..;.;..:::~.,"'
and there were good discussions at each meetm,g~:tI:~ij1?h Gaw stated he
attended three area meetings and was impress~t~ith t~l)~ple in attendance and
1 . . "1 . ..... -:: ..:::::.;~

t terr interest m soi conservatlOn...e::::..~, ...."::;:::~
.«~~... , ...~',.<. "~:~::::,••~

.~~:'" o;:7:1:s::':i
(.0:< ,\.

REQUESTSIREVIEWS .f~*"t,:t~. ~\~. ~"~/'
'. i%~ ..e.~z::~, w

1 Supervisor Appointments ~... ~~ ,. i~• .~ «:J
a. Douglas SWCD .. ,

.>~ ,
Jim Plassmeyer pi~\~n.t~d the Douglas . ""D supervisor appointment.
The Douglas SWC&"t~'":::It..: :equested that " ;;~)j..~~l Norris be appointed to
complete the unexpir~ t ." '. Hollis D~~ith, who passed away.
Mr. Norris and the bo£itl chaJJ.:V1W ~ .~~i¢ed the Verification of
Supe);.· irs Eligibility f&xm:f~erifyin~:'~"'candidatemeets the

.v:·>:" ,..:~~~ , ......»:-." ;::<.
~M!mn ....:..;-. ,to serve on'~ board. .::/

~~~t::}.', ".~ '';»

.fo>~li.~sandif~{. made a mod~.' approve the appointment of Mr. Joel
N01~m.t9, c .~t§,:tb~ unexpIred term ofMr. Hollis D. Smith to the

....... I'C!••"\,','*.,~ ""..".•~~~v"'.,;....."........ 'l";."

..:;;;:::~:j~j~~~j~:~~::::)!ougla :'~:'~., mty'S:'W:((iMJo'ard of Supervisors. Thomas Bradley seconded
.<{::~:;;';····'·'·'····;·:;:;:~1:j~~::J.notio-; ....;. en asked by the chair, H. Ralph Gaw, Thomas Bradley,

,.i@i:;·· "tr~~!~Vandi~' , d..Richard Fordyce voted in favor of the motion and the..;.;.;.:.;.;.. ..; .·x·:·:;.. •• ~;.;.;

:;;;;;;';;;;::~:j;i:j:;::., moff~m~arried;'Ui}aiiimously.

":.;~r;;;·:, ..;:~~i~: .1::~

::::. ::.... Howai;n~SWCD
~@~::.. ~~::;::

··:';:".Jim P.!:f~smeyerpresented the How?rd SWCD.supervisor appointment.
"::.~g~~lloward SWCD board would like to appomt Mr. Oran Boulden to

~~~)tplete the unexpired term of Mrs. Elizabeth Brown, who has resigned.
.~:Mr. Oran Boulden and the board chairman have signed the Verification of
Supervisor Eligibility form, verifying the candidate meets the
qualifications to serve on the board.

Chairman Fordyce commented that Liz Brown had previously served
many years as chair of the Commission.

H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to approve the appointment of Mr. Oran
Boulden to complete the unexpired term of Mrs. Elizabeth Brown to the



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 6

Howard County SWCD Board of Supervisors. Thomas Bradley seconded
the motion. When asked by the chair, Gary Vandiver, Thomas Bradley, H.
Ralph Gaw, and Richard Fordyce voted in favor of the motion and the
motion carried unanimously.

2. Harrison SWCD Request for Variance on Reseedings
Jim Plassmeyer presented the Harrison SWCD request for variance on reseeding.
The Harrison county SWCD Board requested a variance to provide cost-share

assistance to James Robert and Joanne Cook for reseeaiji;ll~~SL-OI Permanent
Vegetative Cover Establishment practice. .11:"

x-:=::..
....~~~

The Harrison SWCD provided cost-share assis~ce t~lili..~mes Cook in the
amount of$5,486.59 on 42.3 acres that i,~~diiit-».~·~two conti~~~GE 001-12-0002

and SGE 001-12-0003). James.R~be.t:4#laJoa~e Cook (the ~~~~~e~~ of the
propert~) .have requeste.d pelmlss.~9.· . ;eed tJi:.l:f:3 acres in tff~!4?}'fields that
were ongmally seeded m the Sprmg 2 : jQn ~~1'.:z, 2013 the D~$thct

Technician II and the Natural Resources 'vation Service staff confirmed the

seeding was not adcquates d required resee "~.:"~'::'.
'i..:::;..... .,. ,,'

The Commission cost-share .' tes: documen;~~of the failed seeding. ~ ~",

must be contained in the boar~ee, . . wittfin one year of the practice".";' ..* -.:, ::,z; .....}.
completion fia... . the reseedirl'~$approvea~~~l'§t-share assistance cannot be
approve..i::?ffWtJi and feliili~.componerl~ .

..:?~J~ ~~~:~s:::~ ~~~~
.~?:f.~' ...~... ::'1::': '*:~

..,;- ~>* ;;:.....~ ~*~..:?

After disc, n, s Bradley n\«(;fc a motion to approve the Harrison SWCD
b d's req~ 1a ..' .:-.sha);l~ssistancefor the DSL-Ol reseeding for both

.;:">~..,."'x '''':. .in the<::$i}t).vnt ~( ',zf21f~()7. Gary Vandiver seconded the motion. H.
.~f~~>:·· RaIPh·'~~~~<{.aryV~iver~,Thomas Bradley, and Richard Fordyce voted in favor

"~:~\\"" of the motmf.1~:and the>-ii:1l.ti:0'll carried unanimously.
~»» ~. ~~"' ""~:::::::'" ~;:*~~",.

"'iO ~" ......~v....~ :0.......... :;;-:.,:::" "-;~>.
":::W:;;~.:. . 'W '. - " ','

.:::~-:::: . ~.;..::: '.. .
3. --:If!t-e.,SWCD J!~::quest to Develop a New Practice in the Woodland Erosion

o:;.:::S~. ~...~)
Restii:~~ Cg}l"cern.v... ':"''':i,:'
Mr. lf~mitt, a board member, presented the Pike SWCD request to develop a
new pr~ctice in the Woodland Erosion Resource concern. Mr. Merritt shared a

statewide concern about forestry; a third of Missouri is covered in forest land and

the majority is owned by private landowners with little or no management. Pike

SWCD has identified over 600 landowners with 40 acres or more of forest. These

landowners were invited to a workshop with a 10 percent attendance. This

workshop showed a large interest in forestry management in Pike SWCD. Mr.
Merritt stated that Missouri has 15 million acres of forest with most owned by

private landowners, and how do you reach that many landowners? One



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 7

organization cannot do this project; it has to be a joint effort with all the partners.
Missouri Department of Conservation owns five percent and the Missouri State
Parks owns fifteen percent. Healthy woods will equal healthy soil and water.

Mr. Rick Merritt proposed that the Commission adopt a pilot practice for Forestry
Management only in Pike SWCD. After discussion the Commission directed Mr.
Merritt to develop a proposal to bring back at a future meeting.

H.

,::j.';.~
~4?'-:"~'~;~

~~~REPORTS ..'>?*,*.
..,:~~::::"{~?:~.

1. University of Missouri ..::::~r "~~::;*~'..
Mr. David Baker presented the report for the q~j.v"~~~ty of Nt'~-!!ri. Mr. Baker
thanked the staff for being included at the an~a::ll'i~ti£fgs. Mr. Bmt~J:...stated that
Extensi~n is in the process of restructur~t!iKtosev~n administrat'ion~and
developmg a campus and off-campus s.~~~.Jmg plan. '" '~:;~?::}~:,:'"

",..' -:'~;'~" \:::::;.. ,,?::::';o'-.;:.:>''-:'.>. ;;;;"~"" .••••-<:.. '••~..~;. /.i-"

Mr. Baker stated Congress has not finalized a, I'm Bill or the FY14 USDA
Budget. This has resulted in a lot ofunknowns~ rning funding for the states
related to extension and resea '0. ~hoth at MU and I:;li~~ln.

~~~~~~ ~~~~. »\{,>,::: '" ~,,'".."'*"" ''" > ,.,,~~~>....
~~. ", ~"~}.;~"<:>:..;;_.. - ~~..>:..>:":"v:.

Mr. Baker also invited the COlTIl}\~Sio-*t~1i!t~Jld the las~~l{tree major field days
sponsored by UMC. Mr. Baker re'v.%twe~~n~:a;\t:~~;~~.:F.:::Jlfethree remaining major field
d \'3 ,l'b7'" ."'-';'f;';>';"ays. ..~'W -::x:::'

,,<~;, .~i ,7""

Also, M~;::fl~r state :ty are in the\~ce~s of setting up an in-service session for
staff for co~~~:~.~~pps. .i't 1:..§j~~'

~-:-:*' 9:::'%~%:-.", ;';'.'.......~~, ....:::~:}~..;:~«,~... ~;$""

2 D ";m.... t f ~::::~:;.. ·...··:::t:~~~:::::.::::1:.:::·..~~;;;....:;.~~··
• -:~:~lfm~p.. 0 C(j~~rva ron..:·:·;::~::~:.$,,'
-:-4~.@iini*fjlli\ml.m:e~erit~~~ report 'f~r ~he D~partment of Conservation..Mr. Dalbom

j:¢, reported on fl~~I~pg a~;;!!jfW1~~e at MISSOUri Department of Conservation fish
·.·.;,';ow.v.,. h heri .b~} b·o;,,'::;:-:;.··;.:v. hite tail d d h 1h (1' d h.:;.;... ··-:.~t-:.;}itc enes, UPCO~!?gpu Jl\Wineetmgs on w ite tal e eel' ea t iste on t e

-:\~~!J.~ervation we'&i)ge), clBve hunting season, and feral hogs.
':::':;':;~:;.;. . '-::~;::

~~~:,.:.~~ {.:,..,.;.
--<a;~*"x~ .. ]o:..-:.~.{

3. Depl ent of A~liculture
~ »:,,' ,,~l'!1

Judy Gl~i1nl.er p,~~sented the report for the Department of Agriculture. Ms. Grundler
reported 6ftlltEmerald Ash Borer survey to be completed the first week of
September~JAtthat time they will evaluate the results for any modifications to the
quarantine areas which limit the movement of firewood out of these areas.

A survey was conducted this year on the Thousand Canker Disease of Black Walnut.
There was no evidence found in Missouri of this disease.

Ms. Grundler also reported on Gypsy Moth, crop conditions, drought conditions, fire
ants and recovery funding for flood damage.



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 8

4. Natural Resources Conservation Services
J.R. Flores presented the Natural Resources Conservation Service's report. Mr. Flores
reported on area meetings, Farm Bill update, Environmental Quality Incentives
Program (EQIP), high tunnels, and the upcoming State Technical Committee meeting
that was held on July 26,2013, at the Bradford Farm.

I.

Mr. Flores reviewed preliminary data from 2010 for the NRCS National Resources
Inventory that is done every five years. Based upon preliminary data, Missouri's
erosion rate shows a 7.6 percent increase in Missouri's erosisn rate which is the first
increase in 25 years. Prior to the soil and water sales tax ~t!~iWte:'.9f erosion was 10.7
tons per acre in 1982 and after the tax it declined to 5;}.~..~. per acres per year. In
2007 it was 5.2 tons per acre, but it increased to 5'~.f~fi· .' ». ere by 2010. This could
?e due t~ more cropland ~cre.s being farmed. ~~:: .~~\res sa~i~n they have more
information, he would bnng It back to the C~.U~,sfun. '~~$"

...-'1;? "~. ....~~~:::.:"
-.'"'.<':- ~..,.;:;:~"

5. Missouri Association of Soil and Wat~t~~onserva,tionDistricts "::::'~\~~ .-.
Kenny Lovelace presented the Missol:lff~lt~_£iation~~' ,~oil and Wat~~~if~ervation
Districts report. Kenny Lovelace thanked J~1t~lo~§;~:' :'o;the kind comnfents he

~'~~.~'*p""."

relayed at each Area meeting. Mr. Lovelace co~"":':>"nted on Technician II
certification, area meetings, C):);¥,~r crops, and train ,>·;~onference dates.

~-:e~':-'.. ",~~.""'X:u '.. =$x;;:::',.
~"":\~ «~~. ....?
~:~ "~'-:::::1:"

PUBLIC COMMENTS ~\.. :;h, ~rl'
Beverly Dometrorch...~..9.JJressed the C01~~n~ 0 '., . :-'~ut information on the health
insurance. Colle~~t~!~ stated that \1J~ program cj: lice has received information from
the insurance :Qij\:Vider an~'$hen finalize<t~ill be sent to the districts. Ms. Dometrorch
also thanked>~f~1issione~~aw for his c~nts on education.

''::"::'f::::-:::, ,r;; ~ , W·'
-';:%~:::'-'" ~&-'";"'%.J~v'

Geo~§f~;;.. lb~ch a(f&t,:.~.", :t'b~~~j;~~Slbn about Jefferson SW~D watersheds
cOJl<{fU'ns~' ~kor meet warm season grasses, and ten-aces usmg dry hole structures
-.«r::> I .~-:" .~..as/uut ets. ":':::'~~ ..::;. .....:::-,

•.::::-:::.'§::.'::. '\.'$-':.. "%=~,,:.:::i·
Q.;,.....:=::ii;:.. .~$J;:~ ~~

. rnl:t'~{1ayfield froii\l:e Gas91:>'nade SWCD requested to present a Cooperative
CO~~-it~on Partner~)J Initiative for Commission consideration. The Gasconade
SWC~"'~ it request Jar streambank protection was approved for a five year project and
an estima '::~-2..st o(£~bO,ooo. Initially they had set a landowner limit of $20,000;
however, onc~~l;~llprojects had been surveyed and costs estimated, the district
petitioned NRqW10 revise the plan and raise the landowner limit to $40,000. NRCS
provided additional funds when available. The grant states that the SWCD and Missouri
Department of Conservation (MDC) will try to provide either in-kind work or cost-share
funding, if available, not-to-exceed the 75 percent threshold for cost-share. The grant is
also contingent on EQIP funding availability.

In 2011, the district established their first project on the Bourbeuse River - 4th order
stream. There was 1,076 cubic yards of rock rip-rap placed in 4 rock weirs and a rock
blanket in between each weir. State average cost was $76,611.20 at $71.20 per cubic
yard, The Landowner received $40,000 from NRCS and $5,000 from the SWCD



r.

DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14,2013
Page 9

The landowner actually spent $61,290.55, which brings the percentage received to 73
percent.

In 2012 the district established two separate projects, the first being just a rock blanket
on the Dry Fork Creek - 4thorder stream. There was 235 cubic yards of rock rip-rap was
placed in a rock blanket. The state average cost was $12,784 at $54.40 per cubic yard.
The landowner received $9,889.56 from NRCS which met the 75 percent cost-share
maximum,

\o~~

The third project was also on the Dry Fork Creek, again a 4t~~~W!~;:&.tream. There was
1,750 cubic yards of rock rip-rap placed in 3 rock weirs~: . ck blanket to cover the
bank. The state average cost was $95,200 at $54.40 p~~:#tllJ't,~h~rd. The landowner
received $71,615.40 from NRCS which met the 75 p~l~ent c6~'~' ~re maximum.
This landowner will be following up with a RiP.j:wml6\est But! ,~:;;:",:-,

z:y·.... ':::::::'::::-.
~<~? "~:Z:::*

The districts 4thand final project is finally.4f.ligned an4 ready for finaW IIDIDing. It
is also a 4thorder stream located on the :@:5"lf~ .;:0. e Riv~~rhe state avera ~st is
$51.16 per cubic yard. The 75 percent rate is ~~~tbic yard. The cl sign calls for
1,400 cubic yards at 75 percent cost-share, totali ,718. NRCS is contracting for
$40,000, leaving $13,718. ' ~'"

....
The Streambank Stabilization Prac... ,'?il,,:' ·...J!m is $5,00 J{district currently has

$15,000 in our Sensitive Area Resoti~~..c~l~~~~-&.:...o1$:'" •
..;«..:J, ....=9'v ~"..;.;.;:=>.,.:..~

We are requestim!.::f~i't~fmce to provid~)::m's landowJt~ith the additional funding of
:f:fl,/ ~"::f.~".<::, ~»

$13,718 to m~~S:the 75 p~ilnt cost-shat~~,The 1.andowner will be providing $17,906 in
out-of-poclset:l:_;~pses, Witi this varianc~: 9,l\,est; otherwise his costs would rise to

'*~":-';"'. ,:-..9 ~ ••«$26 624 "~...-;:::. «.."> .~..-.;,. "':::':';::-- ~bx-:.." . ::::~

~
..:;.:..:;:~" ,.»..:x}....~.,.... li~'

".",,'~:o'" ....::> "'''JO:-'. .. .~::;,;o:...." . . . ~..";'
....::..~~:.. . .v..:..:..~:::....:::::;:.::..:#v

Aft~l.i . ·;;';tl)n~ H. It""Gaw ina<f!-\=::i~otionto approve the variance, to exceed the
,.$.':000 lim:it~:;a\tfW provmt~~bis landowner with the additional funding of$13,718 to

~::~:t.Wilt~t the 75 per~$1f.st-sh[t.i1~~pflzing th~ $15,000 in the Sensitive Area R~source
~t:~~rn. Gary VaI~': . r sec~p~ed the m?tlOn. Thomas Bradley, Gary Vandiver, H:
Ralp.1~1~~w, and RIC ~.;d Fordyce voted In favor of the motion and the motion carried
unan~~Jy. ~~

"~~~~~~~~;;;;,;:~§:::~1~;:i
:.~~.;.:~....:""

J. SUGGEST~frMEETING DATE(S) FOR NEXT MEETING
The suggested'Soil and Water Districts Commission meeting is October 30,2013, in

Jefferson City.



DRAFT MINUTES--MISSOURI SOIL & WATER DISTRICTS COMMISSION
August 14, 2013
Page 10

ADJOURNMENT
H. Ralph Gaw made a motion to adjourn open session at 4:50 pm. Thomas Bradley
seconded the motion. A poll vote was taken; Gary Vandiver, Thomas Bradley, H. Ralph
Gaw and Richard Fordyce voted in favor ofthe motion and the motion carried
unanimously.

Approved by:



Master Fund Status Summary

$920,000.00

$55,000.00

$3,889,250.00

$1,102,122.00

$905,371.00

$261,078.26

$0.00

0.00%

6.71%

15.30%

0.00%

o

78

32

o

D-.:L

$16,500.00

$508,082.97

$168,792.39

-$1,591.00

$2,177,788.00 2.03% 46 $213,022.38

$18,187,167.80 20.13% 626 $1,412,900.93

3546 $4,280,163.7844.84%

0.00% o $0.00

5.15% 17 $71,129.62

10/22/2013 3:47:53PM Page 1 of4



Master Fund Status Summary
# Contract % Contract # Contract

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated Contracts Payment Payment Payments Pending

$35,000.00 $9,118.70 26.05% 8 $3,145.50 8.99% 2 $0.00

$44,770.00 $40,714.25 90.94% 11 $26,889.15 60.06% 4 $0.00

$49,000.00 53.82% 2 $0.00

$33,500.00 0.00% 0 $17,689.04

$36,225.00 0.00% 0 $0.00

$68,700.00 0.00% 0 $0.00

$57,000.00 $35,159.91 61.68% 6 $9,300.78 16.32% 1 $5,082.66

$54,000.00 14.55% 1 $0.00

$74,000.00 $17,717.26 23.94% 3 $10,000.00 13.51% 1 $0.00

$21,700.00 $10,684.43 49.24% 5 $0.00 0.00% 0 $1,295.57

$75,000.00 $26,683.93 35.58% 23 $0.00 0.00% 0 $2,529.39

10/22/2013 3:47:53PM Page 2 of4



Master Fund Status Summary

District Allocated Obligated %Obligated
#

Contracts
Contract
Payment

% Contract
Payment

# Contract
Payments Pending

v;.~~;;:-·r'?:h:~~·

F,.'¥:"~Qil.

$44,655.00

'~"~~~$NF~bi~J}j'~§l;:S'&6§7,;~~W:'
$62,000.00

$7,856.77

$11,494.00

17.59%

18.54%

4

8

$2,747.06 6.15%

0.00%

1

o

$2,271.69

$0.00

..r,AJ~~i~g~~~~1~:~~i\if~~~Q:.
$51,450.00 $4,469.00 17 $0.00 0.00% o $0.00

$0.00

$2,913.62

o

1

0.00%

8.41%

$37,300.00

·'~~a~~¢·w:?~~r~ff~Sl~~fg~~j:~~~~@r~:.
$66,505.00

~Y:~Oi4~~~;7i~~qi]d~i~N/;;roj~¢t;s~¥Qi~:~~W*~~§~_ .

:"'~~'"~ ,~~"..
'F,Y:~Q~

$0.00

$0.00

2

257.14%

24.75%

'U;:if~j~~~s~'1dl~~~ltl~~~t_\., .....
$70,000.00 $50,471.21

Fyt~2()i4'i~t~JJac~;~~I~~~1r~'tijj~<:r:'~~'16i~",~~~:u~ij~~~~~?'
$55,432.00 $30,394.43

~l;~~?~;4:;:li~~~h~~ ....
$64,980.00 72.64% 1 $0.00

Subtotal for SN $1,090,557.00 $415,217.34 38.07% 137 $192,821.03 17.68% 18 $31,781.97

10/2212013 3:47:53PM Page 3 of4



Master Fund Status Summary

Master Fund Status Summary (2014)

Subtotal for R $28,559,061.80 $12,805,966.60 44.84% 3546 $4,280,163.78 14.99% 802

Subtotal for SN $1,090,557.00 $415,217.34 38.07% 137 $192,821.03 17.68% 18

Report Totals $29,649,618.80 $13,221,183.94 44.59% 3683 $4,472,984.81 15.09% 820

10/22/2013 3:47:53PM Page 40f4



MEMORANDUM
2014-004

DATE: August 22, 2013

TO: All Soil and Water Conservation Districts

FROM: ~%-olleen Meredith, Director
Soil and Water Conservation Program

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2014 (FYI4) Supplemental Allocations

At the August 14,2013 Soil and Water Districts Commission (Commission) meeting, the
Commission supported two supplemental allocations for the 2014 Fiscal Year (FY). Both
supplemental allocations will provide funds in the following resource concerns; Grazing
Management, Irrigation Management, Sensitive Areas, Animal Waste Management, Sheet/Rill
and Gully Erosion and Woodland Erosion.

The first supplemental will be based on the Obligated plus Pending totals from the Missouri Soil
and Water Information Management System (MoSWIMS) Master Fund Status Report, which
will be generated at close of business on Tuesday, October 15, 2013. To be eligible for the
supplemental funds in the above resource concern categories, districts must have 70 percent in
Obligated plus Pending of the original FY14 allocation. An analysis of the data will be
performed and allocations will be compiled and loaded into MoSWIMS as soon as possible after
close of business on October 15th

• An email will be sent to districts that allocations have been
loaded and letters with the allocation amounts will follow.

The second supplemental will be based on Obligated totals only from the Master Fund Status
generated at the close of business on Friday, December 13,2013. To be eligible for the second
supplemental allocation in any resource concern category, districts must have 80 percent of the
funds obligated. As with the first supplemental, an analysis will be conducted and allocations
compiled and loaded into MoSWIMS after the close of business on December 13lh, with an email
and letters to follow.

If you have any questions, please contact your district coordinator. Thank you.

CM:tm

e
Rrc)"clcdraper



October 22, 2013

Board of Supervisors

Conservation District

Dear Supervisors:

The Soil and Water Districts Commission at their August 14, 2013 meeting, concurred with the
program to provide two supplemental allocations for Fiscal Year (FY) 2014. Districts that
qualified for the first supplemental received an additional allocation for each resource concern,
provided the obligated and pending contracts met or exceeded 70 percent of the original
allocation for that resource concern, as of close of business on Friday, October 15, 2013.

All districts meeting the 70 percent threshold in a resource concern received at least the resource
minimum established for the completion of one practice. A supplemental resource maximum
allocation ensures that funding is available for as many districts as possible to move forward
toward the goals defined by their local needs assessment. The following table provides the
resource minimum and maximum allocations.

FY14 MID-YEAR SUPPLEMENTAL ALLOCATION
Resource Concern Resource Minimum Resource Maximum

Animal Waste $ 25,000.00 $ 50,000.00
Grazing Management $ 10,000.00 $ 25,000.00
Irrigation Management $ 10,000.00 $ 20,000.00
Sensitive Areas $ 10,000.00 $ 20,000.00
Sheet, Rill, & Gully $ 10,000.00 $ 35,000.00
Woodland Erosion $ 10,000.00 $ 20,000.00

Eighty soil and water conservation districts qualified for the mid-year supplemental allocation.
This letter is to inform you that your district qualified for the first the supplemental allocation
based on Obligated plus Pending cost-share funds as of Tuesday October 15,2013. The
following table shows the progress achieved by resource concern for your district.

o
Ua..·fde:-ll'.ll%:r



October22, 2013
Page 2

County
Soil and Water Conservation District

Mid-Year
% Obligated Supplemental.

Resource Coneem + Pending Allocation
Animal Waste 0.00% $0.00
Grazing Management 70.66% $25,000.00
Irrtzation Management 0.00% $0.00
Sensitive Areas 130.79% $20,000.00
Sheet Rill, & Gullv 99.97% $20,000.00
Woodland Erosion 21.49% $0.00

Total: $65,000.00

The Soil and Water Districts Commission indicated that they will review the status ofthe district
contracts at their meeting on October 30, 2013. The Commission may take further action due to
the interruptions caused by the government shutdown. Districts are encouraged to continue to
work toward the threshold of70 % obligated plus pending prior to the Commission's
consideration on October 30th.

The second FY14 Supplemental Allocation is planned for districts that are obligated at a
minimum of80 percent at the close of business on Friday, December 13,2013. For additional
information please see MEMO 2014-004 FY14 Supplemental Allocations.

If you have any questions, please contact your district coordinator. Thank you.

Sincerely,

SOIL& WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM

Colleen Meredith
Director

CM/AF:clm



Jeremiah \Y/. Oa}') Nixon, Governor • SaraParkerPaule}'. Direcror

OF NATURAL RESOURCES
www.dnr.mo.gov

D-3

I

MEMORANDUM
2014-005

DATE: September 09,2013

TO: All Soil and Water Conservation Districts

FROM: ~Colleen Meredith~irector
Soil and Water Conservation Program

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2015 Needs Assessment Process

To assist the Commission in allocating cost-share funds for fiscal year (FY) 2015, it is time for
districts to update their Needs Assessments. The due date for submission of the Needs
Assessments is November 1,2013. A change has been made for submission of the narrative
portion of the Needs Assessment in order to standardize the information and improve the process
for submittal. To complete the Needs Assessment Narrative, a fillable form and instructions are
located on the Intranet site. The board signed narrative will need to be submitted to your district
coordinator by close of business November 1,2013. This narrative should support the requested
dollar amounts entered into the Needs Assessment in MoSWIMS.

Districts that determine their resource needs have not changed from FY14, can resubmit similar
numbers for FYI5. For district staff unfamiliar with the Needs Assessment process or those who
would like a refresher, please reference the background information and narrative template
located at http://swcd.mo.gov/internal/needsassessment.htm. District staff should validate the
numbers in MoSWIMS to make certain it is an accurate reflection of the district's needs requests
in the various resource concern areas.

The Needs Assessment Process requires both the narrative and entry into MoSWIMS to be
complete. If you have questions or require assistance with the Needs Assessment process, please
contact your district coordinator or Alan Freeman at alan.freeman@dnr.mo.gov or 573-751
i373. Thank you.



DATE:

TO:

Jeremiah W.(jay) Nixon, Governor • Sara Parker Pauley,Director

OF NATURAL RESOURCES
www.dnr.mo.gov

MEMORANDUM
2014-007

October 18,2013

All Soil and Water Conservation Districts

FROM: Cl\f\kolleen Meredith, Director

Soil and Water Conservation Program

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2014 (FYI4) Supplemental Cost-Share Allocation, Termination
Date Extensions for Contracts Affected by the Government Shutdown, and
Extension of FY15 Needs Assessment Deadline

FY14 Supplemental Cost-Share Allocation
Per memorandum 2014-004, districts with 70 percent Obligated plus Pending on the Master Fund
Status Report in MoSWIMS, at close of business on October 15, 2013, were eligible for
supplemental funds within each resource concern category which met the minimum requirements.
The Soil and Water Conservation Program loaded supplemental cost-share allocations on October 17,
2013 into MoSWIMS. Many districts were above 90 percent obligated in multiple resource concern
areas, therefore, the supplemental allocations were provided as planned to allow for continued
planning and implementation of conservation practices.

The Soil and Water Districts Commission indicated that they will review the status of district
contracts at the October 30,2013 meeting, and may take further action due to interruptions caused by
the government shutdown. Districts are encouraged to continue to work toward the threshold of 70
percent Obligated plus Pending prior to the Commission's consideration on October 30th

•

Termination Date Extensions for Contracts Affected by the Government Shutdown
All contracts that have a termination date that expires during October 2013 may be extended
administratively without signatures by the landowner and board, at the district's discretion. The

district needs to work with their coordinator to have administrative change orders entered into

MoSWIMS. Please be reminded that practices must be started before a termination date can be
extended. A special note will be entered by program staff as these change orders are developed.

o
Recycled I'aper



October 18, 2013
Memorandum 2014-007
Page two

FY15 Needs Assessment Deadline
The Needs Assessment deadline that was established in Memorandum 2014-005 has been moved
from November 1,2013 to November 25, 2013 to allow more time to gather the necessary

information.

Thank you for your efforts and patience during the government shutdown. We appreciate the
dedication shown by staff and boards in continuing to work as much as possible during this time.

Please contact your coordinator ifyou have any questions.



MEMORANDUM
2014-006

DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

September 18, 2013

All Soil and Water Conservation Districts

"5VJ
Jim Boschert, Planner III
Soil and Water Conservation Program

Calendar Year 2014 Health Insurance

For calendar year 2014 the Soil and Water Districts Commission will continue to provide
health insurance grant allocations to soil and water conservation districts for select plans
offered through Missouri Consolidated Health Care Plan (MCHCP). Soil and Water
Conservation District Boards with employees that are employed for at least 1,000 hours
from eligible funds, may participate in either the MCHCP PP0600 or the PPOI000 plan.

The cost of the PP0600 plan remains at $601.08 per month for employee only coverage.
The program will continue to provide $560.08 per employee per month or $6,720.96 per
year to the district board in semi annual allotments.

The other health insurance option available to SWCD employees is the PPOI000. The
cost of the PPOIOOO plan is $533.63 per month for employee only coverage. The
program will provide $492.63 per employee per month or $5,911.56 per year to the
district board in semi-annual allotments.

For calendar year 2014 both health insurance plans provided by the Soil and Water
Conservation Program require a $41.00 per month premium copay for district staff
electing to participate.

As has been stated in previous years, management from MCHCP has strongly cautioned
the program and asked us to inform the district supervisors to refrain from covering the
cost of the district employee's portion of health care cost, due to increased utilization of
the health insurance. Such an approach will serve to drive up the cost of health care for
all the districts. If the district supervisors decide to pay the employee expenses, then the

or"
!tC'f,dl'tlrallCr



Memo2014-0006
September 18,2013
Page two

health insurance monthly premiums will need to be renegotiated at a higher cost for all
114 districts. .

MCHCP will provide information on open enrollment to the districts in the near future.
Open enrollment for SWCD employees is October 7th

- November 8th
• Please remember

if your district has employees that choose not to participate in the MCHCP health
insurance plans offered, they will still need to complete the open enrollment forms and
indicate that they do not wish to participate. For specific information regarding the
PP0600 and the PPOI000 plans please refer to the MCHCP website at mchcp.org.

As was stated in the MCHCP letter dated July 24,2013 to all districts, "MCHCP is
working to ensure your medical plan benefits are compliant with the Affordable Care Act
(ACA). The federal government provides resources at www.healthcare.gov to assist you
and your employees."

If you have any questions, please contact Jim Boschert at the Soil and Water
Conservation Program, P.O. Box 176, Jefferson City, Missouri 65102-0176 or by phone
at 573-522-3320. Thank you.



f!!"4 .
.'-a. .

. cons~r:vlng .
natural resources

f01" 01Ir}utt:t1'e ,:,.-

September 12,2013

Adair County Soil & Water Conservation District
2410 S. Franklin St., Kirksville, MO 63501

Phone: (660)665-3274 ext. 3
Fax: (660) 665-0266

RECEIVED
SEP 10 2013

Soil & Water Conservation Program
Attn: Soil & Water District Commission
P.O. Box 176
Jefferson City, MO 6~102

DearCommission:

BY:

We are writing this letter to ask the Commission to add the Warm Season Grass seeding
component back to the Cost Share Component list. It is our understanding the component was
excluded from the list due to the lack of use.

Our county is primarily a cool season grass area; however there has been an increased trend
towards warm season grass in the last two years. We have only had two practices use warm
season grass instead of cool season grass, but our drill has been used four times in the last year to
plant native warm season grass.

After the drought we experienced during the last two years, we were able to witness the
durability and sustainability of native warm season grasses and prairie forbes on an Adair County
landowner's property. This landowner has been very active in educating landowners on the
benefits of using warm season grasses vs. cool season grasses and implementing many stands of
warm season grasses in the county and surrounding counties.

Normally, we have a climate to support cool season grasses and the county has had much success
with it. However, we cannot dismiss the success we have seen with warm season grass during
the last two years. Since Cost Share is a state wide program meant to help as many landowners
as possible, we would like for the commission to add back the Cost Share components for warm
season grasses. This would allow landowners more options ofchoosing seedings that would
better meet their needs and future plans.

Sincerely,

Shawn Robertson, Chairman
Adair County Soil & Water Conservation District



Lawrence County
Soil and Water Conservation
District

10763G Highway 39
Mt. Vernon. MO 65712
Phone: 417-466-7682, Ext. 3

August19,2013

Soil and Water Conservation Districts Commission
P.O. Box 176
Jefferson City. MO 65102

Dear Commissioners,

RECEIVED
, .~ J /. ? 2U13

BY;,

We are in support of adding a warm season grass seeding component back to the cost-share
component list.

Warm season grass plantings in our county have been declining over the past few years. We feel
this may be a direct result of not having a reasonable component rate for planting warm season
grass seed, which is considerably more expensive than its cool season counterpart.

Sincerely.
Lawrence Co. Soil and Water Conservation District

#JUvv
John Wheeler, Chairman

cc: Oregon Co. SWCD I
l



reg nounty S
OriS rv tio

II
istri

ter
t

Rt. 2 Box 2924 Alton,MO 65606 (417-778-7561 Ext3)

September 19,2013

Department ofNatural Resources
Soil and Water Program Office _ _

~":::::==,-:::,::::::::===-,:,pe:Box:.r76-~:::':':~:=~~:::::::::::::'--=-·__·_--_·"":::':"'- ._-. ------.-.--- .----- .- ---- - - -------- -------- --.- ..---.- .-----.- -.--------- --- -- ..-------

__________!~ff~~!l_City,MQ_65 I02-0176 . . .__ ..

Dear Program Office,

The Oregon County Soil and Water Conservation District Board of Supervisors are sending this letter
requesting an opportunity to be placed on the October 30,2013 commission meeting agenda. We
would like to speak to the Soil and Water Commissioners regarding the importance ofthe Warm
Season Grass component(s) and why the component(s) should be added to the soil and water cost
share component list.

Ifyou have any questions please feel free to contact our office at 417-778-7561 Ext. 3. We thank you
for considering this requestl

Sinoorel~Q~

Oregon County Soil and Water
Conservation District
Board of Supervisors



Jeremiah \VI. (jay) Nixon, Governor • Sara ParkerPauley, Director

OF NATURAL RESOURCES
www.dnr.mo.gov

October 23,2013

Board of Supervisors
Oregon-County Soil and Water

Conservation District
Route 2 Box 2924
Alton, MO 65606

Dear Supervisors:

Thank you for your letter dated September 19,2013, requesting individual warm season grass
components for State Cost-Share. This request is for components in addition to the established grouped
seeding components.

The Commission approved the use of grouped seeding components beginning in FY 2010 based upon
Code of State Regulation 10 CSR 70-5.020(3) Funding Determination and Limits, which states, "In the
event that the landowner wishes to construct or implement practices over and above the size or scope

determined by a qualified technician to be ofminimum and necessary needfor soil and water
conservation, the board shallprovide cost-share assistance on only that part ofthe practice necessaryfor

soil and water conservation purposes".

Currently landowners can choose any seed type or combination of seed types that meet Natural Resources
Conservation Service Standards and Specifications for conservation practices which require seeding to
control erosion. This enables landowners to select seeding mixtures that best fit the needs oftheir
operation. Reimbursement for the seeding component of these practices is based upon the grouped
seeding component price for that practice. Grouped seeding components were developed based on the
minimum and necessary extents needed to control erosion. For example, the cost-share rate for Pasture
Seeding is $107.93 per acre, which is based on average costs for cool-season grass/legume seed, seedbed
preparation, and seeding method (broadcast or no-till). At 75 percent cost-share, the landowner is eligible

to receive $80.95 per acre seeded. Landowners that choose a lower cost seed combination such as
orchardgrass ($1.88/lb.) and red clover ($2.13/lb.) will receive a higher reimbursement rate for the seed
portion of the grouped component than selection of smooth bromegrass ($2.93/lb.) and alfalfa ($4.12/lb.).

Cool season grasses and legume costs were averaged to develop a seed cost in the component grouping

because it is the least cost means to prevent erosion. Memorandum 2009-031 discusses the use of grouped

seeding components in more detail.

o
Ucqclcd raper



Oregon SWCD
October 23, 2013
Page two

There is a high level of interest for seeding warm season grasses as indicated in letters received from
several soil and water conservation districts that are requesting a warm season grass component. Warm
season grasses may be seeded by landowners currently through cost-share, but as stated above, the
reimbursement is based on cool season grass and legume costs. To assist landowners with the additional
costs ofestablishing native warm season grasses, the Missouri Department ofConservation (MDC) has
funding available to provide incentives in addition to state cost-share funds. Landowners who include
native warm season grasses in their seeding mixture could receive an additional MDC incentive ranging
from $50 to $150 per acre. Please refer to Memorandum 2013-006 for detailed information on the MDC
incentives available for seeding practices.

Although warm season grasses are not a specific cost-share component, landowners who choose to seed
native warm season grasses in a pasture seeding could receive a total cost-share payment of $130.95 to
$230.95 per acre by utilizing both state cost-share and MDC incentives for their warm season grass
seeding.

The interest by districts for warm season grass and other components for cost-share practices that are not
currently available was part of a presentation at the Area Meetings this summer and will be further
considered as part ofthe Plan for the Future Conservation Practices Subcommittee.

Your suggestions to improve the program for landowners in your district are appreciated. Input from all
districts is welcome and essential for developing future plans. Ifyou have further questions, please
contact your district coordinator, Jennifer Pellett, at the Department ofNatural Resources, Southeast
Regional Office, 2155 North Westwood Blvd, Poplar Bluff, MO 63901, or by phone at 573-840-9438.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM

~v1~dd:tJ
Colleen Meredith
Program Director

CM:dab



FOREST MANAGEMENT PLAN (106)
October 22, 2013

Property Information

New X

Owner's Name:

Address:

\.
Phone:\'~"

c:
H:

County:
Pike

Location:
Township
Range
Sections

Revision



Required Signatures

I certify that this FOREST MANAGEMENT Plan meets therequirements of the federal Forest
Stewardship Program.

PlanPreparer Date

I certify that this FOREST MANAGEMENT Planmeetsthe requirements of the federal Forest
Stewardship Program.

Date

\
i,.'J\'''<\."',I certify tha~this FOREST MAN

Environmenfi~uality\rnce~tive~
plans in sed.. ~IIU>fthe TlJSDA. ,I',,-, tflJ~

../.B,
- - ~~.~---:-~=

" '~chhl'ical) _,~lce pr~iide%.fll .1I11i" , Ift.:.... li~' II
", ') \~ ~J _rtf f1J _~ ~I _ .~_

I certify tha~ thisFORES'1r~GEMENT Plan meets~ requirement;of the USDA
Environment-~uality-Incentives':~~~lP)-Program-and/o~he Quality Criteria for forest activity
plans in SectionIII of the USDA RCS FieldO~deT7.chnical Guide.

District Conservationist

I havereviewed thisplanand approve its content.

Landowner

Date

Date

2



. Table of Contents

Property Information 1

Required Signatures Error! Bookmark not defined.

Table of Contents 3

Location Map Error! Bookmark not defined.

Landowner Objectives 5

Forest Health and Protection 5
1i"-·-------7~~:- \.,

Wat~ Resources #" ;i~ 6

Soil ~esources 1 1 .1. ..iJi~'ifS.ll.S 6

W' ldl ' ~'-~ .""'"" ) I I i~~T" r: ,.'>'" 1'::f!1 t f'7 61 ll.e...l'..esources .\.. .. .' ..,!;rH :.·••••• ~;~ ••{i:'!I••"".I... I""''! .

•1". ~} ... <;» .\ \\1i/'.:;;J·6j~lo/ l:!iJt-'i/ f ir/iN1fA;1! J!!JI (i'
Recreational and-Aesthetic Resour.ce~ --;;.:., ..•;.;.:1';.~••:~.:;.'i!.f:~ :';.i~! iI 7

Thr t dl d E '~d \ d S (' ~ .. ::.:f,I?:.,.'j ['~f 7
ea ene ·a~.. ~.angere peG1~~ ..,...}-.::..:./ :.. F::':., ~ .

Ar h I . li't C'" ·~ltr11 \ d H' t ·~~7f!it,;"'JiJl9:S.. 'it ''''$1> '£4FiI <"-"flZ;:;;;:. <,::50,,', f(fi4, 7c eo OglCfl!:~" u u a, an IS ~~~a:: :J.~iS ;••i;jl,'·.,;i·i .. ;;.:;;;:- ;1;Jd .
i"%.~" . \ii,;/fti! \' i( \~:r,·::j"7~:\;;,' ff~!J ,

Property MiPS ···;':'..,~·····'r······C: ..t»..t~....s;;.. ;: £if:•.:..:.·.·;;.;:.;:-f..:;&l~;,fEr.E.or. Bookmark not defined.

Stand Map JL....... .~ 4~~;~L \:~'. Error! Bookmark not defined.
I ~.r. --',J \\ ./'~ .. :m".~·'l __'Y' '~."~' ,.~ "'. • <ifillA 1\.\.11' ...,:;~,:~ i~f~ se . .''!¥~ ':"'7""-'\'':;. A>;;,i,'\.iE··/{<,w..··'..:""~B··"·l;,,:~'··"·k'\· ··>'·t-'·;I~fi. d

cres lYl.ap·;·~'~...:,~ · :~\ ··..··I~!!1 'iW'J/ .r·'i".~yJ1jf.i."'.~·J(.; '.-..j~i';,il;(~·il.~·' ..·.'.·.j l r~.r.q.!11r ! o.<~~jl,.aE.:..c._.'?o." rV7~re .
. I ~~, lJ:.'SJ 'It!i!J fi!!!J ~~h!!J f~·,·,~~!<;;;i' "J.:'-''''''''p' "?il .,)/ ". ''7,;.;11, ~!,

Soils ~.ap ; ~1 l~ ;-; ::-. : '-l...:ij::-~~rror.-BooRmark not-defined.

Timber Stand Informatioh•.......::;1 ? 11

Appendix I .:.LSampleSfanQ;;i:~a15I~-::::::::"::·::·::::-::-:I v:. 22\\ ,) S'
Appendix II - Description ofFordN~AanagemenUP..ractices 23

d::_:~

Appendix III - Definition of Forestry Terms 25

Attachments
Soils Report - Forestland Productivity
Forest Stand Improvement Job Sheet (JS-666)
Crop Tree Management Information Sheet (IS-M0666ctm)

3



Location Map

4



Landowner Objectives

objectives are to manage this property in a manner that will protect and enhance the
farm's natural resources.

Some ofhis current objectives are:
• Enhanced wildlife habitat for a wide range of species, particularly whitetail deer and

turkey
• Become increasingly knowledgeable regarding the current structure of the forest and the

possible management options for the forest
• Increased productivity of the existing forest for timber production
• Improve forest species composition over time by managing regeneration
• Protection and improvement of all natural resources

t;'----'---·-~-·,··-:~c·,~:-,-ForestHealth and Protection
~ try"')'

Your 'property and for~sts a~'~e v~};l.ahlJassets and should be, protected from damaging forces if at
". \ A,,ip'~~. •• •

all posslb~e. So~e o~ the~e ,01~jl7S::1~Sl~~;;. ~~ldfir~s,f,~r~1~~~:~~~ec!7~am~ge and dlse~ses.
Some copunor(pTIrctI.ces that' " "~~P,1~f9 . Tore's~me" -, ight include fencing, fire
lines andsurveillance forknse seas<S'Ed' 11/11/ ~,\ .~ 1 ~- ~ ~ ~

'''\'' ( '1

B dari I W ll~' \. d 15-'" ./ I lr..~ f h . -, d '1' doun aneskt re mamta~ne o'c';;'h"''''''" a;~ on((o~ t : easlest,yet~1J1ost un erutilize ,means
of protecting\i~2ur~pert~: By l\l~~rfgJW~(.aa~~y!IDip~~-lq(Cffilar)1~tou are assuring that
inadvertent *espas~ and as~ociate~jlet~im~~J~~2Yvif~il e'pJ1to a minimum. Two
common and effective"way~\of mai~~qlng'Qpe's 'boundary are by establishing a fence, or by

! ,,' '-/' t "",,;, ,'-'f""'<r.! ~

using purple; pail}t-0r.$ignag~ to mafJ,<tth~;p~timeter of y.ourproperty. All 3 methods, if inst~Jed
properly, arJ leg~I?(Q~~ary~,arkiitfJII~~rb",~~'1!f::'c,,~ ItIff~l,r

I ~\, ';; rI \-,ifI llfJ £0
') J 'l'!!!J "'"" "i:! ,'!!!:J

Wildfires - fire can be ~{ve:y ~~ful tool i~ natu~l resoufc;-,; , 'agem.ent,. but it can al~o ~e one
of the most ~armful. Thls"olffe.rence depends on your man~gement objectives and the timing and
intensity of ihe';fire:-·(jenerally;-it:ts-a-gmrd;-dea·to-elimllYa.te fire from your woods if you are
managing the forest for timber pro~pction, as firei~likfly to lower the timber value of your
trees. A proactive approach to discouraging fire is t<riiiaintain fire lines and trails to prevent any
unintended fire from reaching your woods.

Insects and Disease - Recently, there have been many instances of disease and insect outbreaks
across the nation. Missouri is not immune to these afflictions. There are several different
diseases and insects currently affecting Missouri's forest, with more sure to follow. These are,
for the most part, natural occurrences and have occurred throughout history. However, there are
several exotic or introduced agents that are currently of concern. It is important that you remain
observant, especially during the growing season, for any type of unhealthy tendencies in your
woods. Following is a list of common symptoms to be on the lookout for:

• Pockets of dead or dying trees
• Defoliation during the growing season
• Yellowing, browning, or wilting of a large portion of a tree's leaves

5



If you should happen to observe any of these symptoms, contact your Forester as soon as
possible. Many times, it is too late for the trees that have already been affected; however, there
may be steps that will prevent the further spread of an outbreak.

Remember that the best way to guard against insects and disease is to keep your woods healthy
and vigorous through a regular regime of thinning and harvest to help remove poor quality and
unhealthy trees that might serve as a host for these agents.

Livestock Grazing - Livestock grazing can significantly reduce your forest's ability to produce
high quality timber. Grazing introduces considerable risk to existing trees in the form of soil
compaction, stem damage, and increased erosion potential. Ninety percent of a tree's feeder
roots lie in the upper 6 inches of soil. Soil compaction from grazing can eliminate the air space
in the soil that these roots need, effectively suffocating them.

Studies-have-shown-thatJ.:n.:.average-situations, it would take 17 acres ofwoods to provide the
equi~alent forage beneftt,o~1 acre of~as~re. So, rron: an economic s~andpoint it i~ much more

advan)f\~\eous t;:::,ar ~\or " !~".;;~.I,q"i:.~,~~~m,I..~~an for livestock grazmg,

\" '-J 'iat~r!!Res.oJi'ft~es
'" _ ... '::.;';;;t""'::::J... '..::':::"''''-:=J''''::::J ....::::.J ~

Forests a~e lfnPortan\in p'otec~~:~gA~;SM~lityI3f~ater.s in our I s and streams. A forest
canopy dl~ftl~he-&ce ~f fallm~~~~~. the ~~~l~y~~~ t~~i~o.r~st floor acts as a natural
spo~~e, mmlIlJl,mg run of{and f~5rn..g-"s~~,(~~~sfa~~m~VI~~t~ i~~1t10nally, tree roots help
stabl1~ze thel.ballks of.streaIV,s. ~@~~oPle.s-,~lia!e tlie~~~ID~wng water temperature a~d
allo~m~ an ~ncrea~~ the ~moul!.t ~1.~~/m tfi:e~ter. Organic ~atter from forests provides
habitat m s~eam[and~an 1~.. portWiJ1..,~.., i., 'In le';'!l.~f the food ~~~l? Therefore, proper!~.~yI
managed f01ests ate.an essen\ml c<iJu'R;~,'" ..lIf .""'- JIf.r

~ \ fJ W~ __. _filii _ ,~
This property has a varie.!y of'1'{er systems present, inclltdih veral ponds and a network of
permanent, mtermittent, ~d-epijs:meral streams. It is im~pitant that buffers along waterways be
maintained .btl"ii1ll!ifcetl~(fi ortli'"toliClilevetli"e ire1ntioned benefits .

. Soil Resources

Soils are the foundation on which trees grow, so it is important to manage the right tree species
on the correct soils. Doing so will lead to a healthier, more productive forest.

A soils map is provided and soils reports are also attached. Refer to your county soil survey for
additional descriptions ofthe soils on your property. This can be obtained from your local
USDAJNRCS office, or on the internet at soildatamart.nrcs.usda.gov.

Wildlife Resources

A healthy forest system comprises more than just timber production, it is also built around the
complex interactions ofother plant, animal, and insect species. A quality forest will provide
habitat in which a wide variety of plants and animals can thrive. The forest components other
than the trees must be considered before determining the proper management strategy for your
forest. Most landowners are interested in a combination of objectives for their forest.

6



Fortunately, many ofthe tree species that are important in timber productionare also very
desirable for wildlife habitat. In the end, your specific management goals will be the guide for
the ongoing management of your forest system.

Limited resources such as growing space, available sunlight, water, and nutrients determine the
productivity of individual trees and the stand as a whole. All of the trees in a forest compete for
these limited resources; therefore, it is important to remember that more trees are not always
better. It is a common occurrence that a forest will experience 'greater overall wood and mast
production after removing a portion of the trees than it would have with all of the original trees.
It is important to determine which trees in the stand are desirable based on your management
objectives so the undesirable trees can be removed. This thinning will free up resources for the
remaining "crop" trees, making the stand more productive and allowing more sunlight to reach
the forest floor. The extra water and nutrients now available, coupled with the increased light,
will lead to a flush of ground-layer growth that can be beneficial to many types of wildlife.
The~e~areas·ofthick-re,g~n.e,~ation-are~ot always' considered aesthetically pleasing, however this
stage-offers more foodfandBabitat ~pprtunities than at any other time in the succession of a
forest\~: more i~forJnatio~.~~~~~~f~managemen~i:<;e~r~~.the Missouri Dep~rtmentof

Conserv<jtion PN,b,l~a~on\"\V~~~!eJ\"!ll .. orr,'','", " d'rners," available upon
request from YQl:lr local tvfDC'·p~J.;so~el~ Ii }

~
I _,~'__.
1 / /' ~

RecreatiOn~lwa.~~.:Aesthetic Resources
. \ ,- I !14

Practices tha feet tlie ti~ber aHff~QWQ:~'y~r~~etty will also affect the
. I' ,,' hetic ri I I . .,,)if ~,) hCll J ~t' ,~I .. 1 h 1hrecreationa fill "aest etic resour .-: t ~s l1¥lj)tt@'t t :~.Jze~a t~axlmlze ong term ea t

and p~od~~t~vity ofyour fotist ah~M1flli1¥f~erem~x be some short term sacrifices in w~at
most IndlVlduals-rtln~eaesthetl~alt~11. . In wood's. Areas that have been recentl¥t~l~~d

h t dl ·ll~'r.· b \', d ~~I fI!i:. ~l.! 1'Ai~", , ~•. :$\t;::r'!jor arves e WI 'nave an a un ancejQ.L~'" '. rO~"li iii ., e~W1S

may not be the park:iIke-setti~~ sJ.1iIefpib~r6~~ ..~rltel~l ~,~'""~ . ,~es.., 1 ~pro~df~~~[~llent
cover and fo~age opportq~ties~t9f wildlife. Additionally~~"'!1Jttsh"will contain the seedlings
and saplings:L,that will beco)ne-tI!~ forest for the next genebaffion.

--' \ )
Threatened and Endan ered S ecies

There were no threatened or endan~d species recorded on this property, as identified by the
NRCS Heritage Database. If threatened or endangered species are found, it would be advisable
to alter your management practices to favor these species.

One endangered species that can be present in Missouri forests between April 1 and September
30 is the Indiana bat. These bats will roost under the loose bark of dead trees as well as under
the shaggy bark of hickories. Avoid destroying potential habitat during the period stated above.
Harvesting or cutting trees greater than 9" DBH must be limited to before Aprill or after
September 30 to ensure the protection of this species.

Archeological, Cultural, and Historical Sites

There are no known archaeological, cultural or historical sites on this property.

7



Conservation Plan: Forest Stand Map

o ForestStands. rI Streams. l"/ Roads.

D Property line 0 Ponds

I

r---------------------------.---------
40p0tt.

8



Conservation Plan: Forest Acres Map

o Forest Stands rI Streams / ...i Roads

o Property Line lJil Ponds

9



Gorin silt loam30066

• Keswick loam60271

• Gorin silt loam 30068

Minnith siltloam60193

~ Keswick loam30100

Conservation Plan: Forest Soils Map

Goss gravelly silt loam60015

o Forest Stands

o Property Line

.rI Streams

G Ponds
r

Dameron-Cedargap complex 66078 r.l Roads

10



a

Timber Stand Information

All Stands
1. Different tree species like ash and oaks are dead and dying from unknown causes.

Contact the state plant pathologist to conducta site visit to identify why trees are dying.
2. In conjunction with the practices referenced for the property, edge feathering could be

performed in all of the stands bordering open ground on the property (NRCS Practice
Code 645). This practice creates a thick, "brushy" strip between wooded areas and open
areas. This practice is designed to create habitat for small game species such as rabbit
and quail (See attached job sheet).

3. There are areas where grape vines are becoming a problem by covering tree canopies.
While conducting forest management activities, it would be beneficial to crop trees to
have the grape vines cut and chemically treated. Grape vines may be left in less desirable
trees, as they provide valuable soft mast in the canopy layer for migrating song birds and

'fOtlier-wimlife:<-~ --"--"--,
4\Dur!ng the Site\;'V.i~it;1n:u~!!12h~~irS of wood ducks wer~ seen ~n t~e prope~. It would be

'C:!f!r1sa?le to re1al~ c~vlp'~d~Thu;ees for wood d~f~~e pg habitat In stands In or
~9tden~g-thuvef flo8HplaJZ~;J. 'JIll 1Ji, I JiIIJ/ \~\ JW'

5. IV1uI~iflo~~ rose, p~i.cklys~~~;~~a~~ t~c~r <.~ ~yughout the property. ~hese
sp~les are-not te~lbly thlck)Ii,J~.IiY one" ea, Dutcan oe~cWe so. It may be beneficial to
remdv;e>thes~species vik-ftiliar~d1etniJal-a1?Plication or cutti~g.

6. Seve~~~< m'ana~emJ~t reco~~a~~f~i ~~i~1~~;~i~~gih,~:t~asal Area to belo.w B-Ievel

~~:~1m~~l::~!l:~~li¥~~?R~:II~i: :t:~:o~:~~:,on
W1gl~~r:l~~l~ep~~ng~i:rl~i:rg~~~~:~~d~~~ms. ~~ s~~:~~:uati?nS, ~~:~;:g

r ",~' II, r.c<,! t" ,rp~'I=r.:;"Y:'f's'~1:::U-)"'I j~fr tlf{(r-5-.'i1 fjJf""r"
the Basal Afea-to some,time.s we1Jloelo~;I~dle'v~Vs.mc ';' . ~ !J!J l'J , t!1t t~'1I ") 'j. . ..': ' .. 'J ':.. '.! :.~,c.::.,-":.:J '.::.1 ,~I • "'=.I ' "''e:J

1 ~\
l_,__~.,.__,_,,,',,__---l""' _

I 11



Stand 1, 8.5 ac # Sample Plots: 4

Slope: 5-10% IBAlac.ITPAIAvg. DBH IB-LeveIIC-Level;
Aspect: E Total: 70.0 863 3.9 .!§.~.c!':~~'!!L~:·. 55 33

Site Index: --------- ----------_. .................. •..·42·:1""····58 AGS: 22.5 82 7.1. BAlac.: 55.3
Stocking%: 78

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
UGS: 25.0 770 2.4 TPA: 495 161

Merch. Vol.lac.: 2,317 bd-ft
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 17.5 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 4.5 6.9

Merch. TPA: 19
................... ........................

Cull: 5.0 3 17.5
Merch. BAlac.: 33 --------- ----- ----------..

--q~.!~~ 0.0 -- ------- -----------.
Snag: 0.0 -- --

Top 5 spp. by BA:
Oak-White (12.5), Elm-American (12.5), Hickory-Shagbark (10.0), Oak-Black (7.5), Walnut-

....................................... ~.~~~.~..(2:~.t ..................................................................................................................................................................................
Top 5 spp. by

Elm-American (573), Hickory-Shagbark(127), Redbud (57), Oak-White (39), Ash-Green (31)
TPA:

Avg. Site Index: 58

! with small saw log shingle oak,

~-"'._._-- -~
Management Focus: '
I) Thi~~tand for a"',,,,stheticY 2) Manag . ry for mature tree,S for hard mastproduction for wildlife and

aesthetics) ••..<; \ l 1/ ~ I

Soils an~~O~'taPhY: ,__ fJ, V
• Gon~ silt loam'}5 to 9\percerit slop ;~roded~ 1/
• Goss ma~e1ly silt loam, 9 to l14" bpes\.eroded

DescriPtionl~f~gem~ntU r
I """ ~• Overstory: Composed of, sca~ere

white!oak, walnut-and htpkory
• UllderstorJ:fbpen,Jyith ~apling ,y
• RegeAerat/?;),:J!oor, with~little ~efe 8
• DomlpantSizeaii$s:)Lar~~ sa~~b _ _ ~ 'ff KlJ
• InvasiveSpecies: No~ne not~~1 ~
• Acce},ibility: Good,lIu~&iproximity of the landowner's house, pasture and forest trails
• Past Use:_Grazedlhar.v:ested.f0t~SL , _ ~
• CurrentUse: Grazed timber, with planned fencing td manage for aesthetics and wildlife habitat\'. L..-...?

Management Recommendations~
• Primary Recommendation: Light FSI-remove 25sqft ofBA. Focus on removing elm and ash, while

managing for oak, hickory and walnut.
• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re

evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Fencing out livestock is pertinent in conducting forest management practices. After fencing is complete, conduct a
light FSI to remove undesirable elm and ash. Try to eliminate grapevine from the stand. Focus on thinning the
understory to create an open, park like forest for aesthetics. Focus forest management activities on a mixed oak,
hickory, and walnut overstory.

12



Stand 2, 9.7 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 5-12% IBA/ac.ITPA IAvg.DBH :,.,," ~~:i'/ ":;~:.: ... IB-LeveIIC-Level
Aspect: SE Total: 105.0 607 5.6 /!.~£~~~'!.~..~:. 56 40

Site Index: --------- fo------- ---------_.- .................. ...................
58 AGS: 65.0 81 12.1 BAlac.: 76.4 57.5

Stocking%: 98
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 20.0 493 2.7 TPA: 95 62
Merch. Vol.lac.: 5,163 bd-ft

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 10.0 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 12.1 13.0

Merch. TPA: 40
................... ........................

Cull: 10.0 29 8.0
Merch. BAlac.: 65 --------- t------- t-----t-----------.__c;~!!l~ 0.0

fo------- -----------_.
Snag: 0.0 -- --

Top5 spp. by Hickory-Shagbark (25.0), Oak-Northern Red (20.0), Oak-Bur (15.0), Walnut-Black (10.0),
BA: ~~~~~.~!!Y.J.~.9.:.9.),..............................................................................................................................................................................................................

Top 5 spp. by
Hackberry (458), Hickory-Shagbark (39), Mulberry-Red (25), Oak-Shingle (25), Oak-Bur (21)

TPA: ~ ;,;:

Avg. Site Index: 58

and walnut

M;b~g;-~~~tF~cu-~-·····~·__·_~

1) Mad~e f~r timber prod~c~~on rOc~{!~J1~2~~alnut and mixed oak 2) Manage for wildlife habitat through hard
mast produ'lon an,~~~th11kr(g~ '. nderstory for co:" i I

Soils an~\~op~gra~hY: \ ~if IJ V
• Gorinlsilt loam"5 to 9\percerit .'~ ,,~:?,.ded) IJI
• Goss Fave~ loam, 9 to lI4"'" "., nt;s bpeS'i'ero~ed

l~ \_._1)4~~
Descriptionl ofil'~anagem~nt U ond~~~)

• Overstory: Composed of smalI'saw.Jog hlCKb~ , .. 0,
I "-~. I ','?"'", r'~··' ........

• Ulldefsto~~en~with '~ap~ing1t~:pdle. ~i~r~ackberry~~d ~ickory
• Regelleratl(Jll: Mo4-erate;;,wlth S9)1l~t aktrt:es~siUt41g., ...! \i? ~ ,.,-'1/ ,.. ".,', 'I&'A,,~ "",,';.,.,1,
• DomillalltSize,£lass: Sma.ll sa~~lag: i~fl ::::r-f:;l;Jrl:~'1

I -- \l. '('!!I'll" ,. 1'-\ Ja;;'
• Invasive Species: None no~~d ~ h. _ _ '.,'.;:'1':1
• Acce~sihility: GOOd,(e~e. to f~~.6st trails and pasture access -,1'2 .iJ:/
• Past Use: Grazedl harvested forest J-
• CurrJllt.Use:-Grazed.timb;~:;,~th.planned.fencing..to manlige for timber production and wildlife habitat

Management Recommendation:~." "0
• Primary Recommendation: Light FSI-remove 20sqft/ac ofBA. Focus on removing hackberry, elm, ash,

and thinning culls and suppressed trees. Manage for oak, hickory and walnut. Re-evaluate this stand in 5
years to identify if a harvest is needed.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re
evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Stand 2 is growing good quality oak and walnut trees. The stand can be harvested now, but it is recommended that a
light FSI be conducted first. The goal of this treatment is to manage for regeneration ofgood trees rather than
undesirable trees. By removing undesirable (hackberry) trees, cull trees and suppressed trees the canopy is opened
up and regeneration is managed (favoring oaks and walnuts). After the FSI good regeneration should begin to take'
place and create a thick understory. Re-evaluate this stand 5 years from time ofFSI completion to determine if
regeneration has advanced. If so, harvest this stand. Goal BA in this stand is 70.0sqft/ac.

13



Stand 3, 19.8 ac. # Sample Plots: 5

""~": ,".., :-:,r:.,,: Slope: 0-3% ,;~::.' . IBAlac.ITPAIAvg. DBH IB-LevelIC-Level
~ <t . ;.: :~'~'1

.'.'
, -- Aspect: Flat " . Total: 88.0 444 6.0 §.!.?~~~'!.~..~:. 56 40
,-

..
--------- ------------ .................. ...................

Site Index: 72 AGS: 40.0 35 14.5 BA/ac.: 70.2 58.0
Stocking %: 80

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
UGS: 26.0 403 3.4 TPA: 218 63

Merch. Vol.lac.: 4,922 bd-ft
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 16.0 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 7.7 13.0

Merch. TPA: 35
................. i.. ........................

Cull: 6.0 1 33.2
Merch. BA/ac.: 60 --------- ------- ----- --.-------_.

_E~!!l~ 0.0 -- --1------ ----------_.
Snag: 0.0 --

Top ~ spp. by BA:
Hackberry (40.0), Sycamore (20.0), Walnut-Black (10.0), Elm-American (8.0), Maple-Sugar

......................................... ~1:.2>................................................................................................................................................................................................
Top5spp. by ."",

,.',.~.: TPA:
Hackberry (402), Elm-American (21), Sycamore (6), Maple-Sugar (6), Walnut-Black (6)

Avg. Site Index: 72

st9!lY.
lr(

rJ~
and but a stream cuts off the east side

~-------_..... . ~~":';i~ . -

Management Focus: ,~;,
I) Marlage for walnut timlier p.rotcti intain a riparian buffer for uptake of stream pollutants from livestock

and stre1,anks~~n \ I";;;
Soils and~op8graphY: _ ~~ iiJ ..

• Dameron - Ced~rgap ~omplex, ~p.ercentfslopes, occasionally ft:..,Cled
• Goss gravelly silt loam, 9 to l14" bpesl;.eroded

l!{ ~J \ t' I

D . ti 1""fM \\ U d·~ti~~escrrp tonto <, anagement 1i16n~
I ""., ~ I .~~~ ~

• Overstory: Com..posed of smal -s w.log wa1nu an ~ ac wit 'd large saw log sycamore
• Unde}story: Open;,with\~aplibg-t8'm~l~ gar m)ple.l hackberry, elm and scattered buckeye
• RegeJerati6n:PoolJ mainly un ;',w \ii. • • clcr t ccasi .

• DomihantSlze...[:lass: Smlallsa :i
• InvasiveSpecies?"N.-one nol~d __ __ _ _ ~. ._

• Accesr,ibility: Moder,.~fe, wiltl.g/.o.... od access from the west si;tt:>'iii .
ofthejstand (foot traffic~1\

• Past Use:.Harvested.forest.(.40tt"-:-years.ago)_..~
• CurrentUse: Forest for timber'p·roduction and riparian buffer\' LJ

Management Recommendations:
• Primary Recommendation: Light FSI: Prune and Release on walnuts - Maintain at least 48 crop trees/ac.

Prune crop trees up to at least 16ft.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time. Re-evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
This bottomland stand is stocked with good quality walnut trees. A light FSI is recommended on this stand.
Conduct a crop tree release with pruning (prune and release) to reduce competition providing walnut trees with more
room to grow. Release walnut trees on at least three sides. Allowing at least 10 ft ofopen sky between crowns.
Crop trees should then be pruned up to at least 16ft. When FSI is complete, crop trees will be spaced 30' X 30'
apart. Crop trees will benefit from a prune and release by growing faster, healthier and straighter while becoming
more valued in the future. For more information see attached crop tree release information sheet and FSI JS666.

14



Stand 4, 35.0 ac. # Sample Plots: 6

Slope: 0-14% IBAlac.ITPAIAvg. DBH IB-LevelIC-Level
Aspect: S Total: 100.0 811 4.8 .~~.c!'~~~'.!¥...~:. 56 38

--------- ----------_. .................. ...................
Site Index: 56 AGS: 56.7 79 11.5 BA/ac.: 69.0 54.9

Stocking %: 101
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 30.0 708 2.8 TPA: 255 75
Merch. Vol./ac.: 3,469 bd-ft

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 33 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 7.0 11.6

Merch. TPA: 37
................... ........................

Cull: 10.0 22 9.1
Merch. BA/ac.: 52 --------- ----- ----------_.

--q~.!..~~ 0.0 -- ------- ------._--_.
Snag: 0.0 -- --

Top5spp. by Oak-White (33.3), Hickory-Shagbark (23.3), Oak-Black (6.7), Maple-Sugar (6.7), Oak-Northern
BA: ~.~.~.J§.:.?)................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Top5spp. by Hickory-Shagbark (301), Oak-Shingle (153), Oak-White (110), Maple-Sugar (90), Elm-
TPA: American (84)

Ma~;'g";';'~~tF~'~us:" ~, ~ I
I) Manage for timber Product\'on focusi mixed oak and hickory 2) Manage for wildlife cover and hard mast

produci'ifg~~fes F;j ( II ~ I

Soils ana\:ropL~raPhY: . ~IiIf
• Keswick lo;rin, 9 to 14 perceft ~ ~ Avg. Site Index: 56
• Keswic,!<~loam,\to 9 !,ercent-slo'ites,rer'tmed

!t', ~ \ ~ W 1_f'J1
• Dame~gn - Cedargap complex, ,," yc
• Goss kr~elly silt loam\ 9 to I fs

"t':;~\,. ~\

D . t' fM'~ \tU(~-"'~d·~TI'~'·escrip IOn 0 anag~meIt, m i· ~~\1 b~~n:

• oversfory:~po,s~~ of'~,m~ll sic; \ggjl)}'i}d51~J:-'~
• Ulidefsto~:'@p~_wlt~ Sarh~gAIZI~k~~:J'lf~~sN;~f~ r
• Rege~eratlOll: Poor;-~lth ~,amJ)l~un~e_Slfa1>lesygar~

• Dominant Size Class: SmaIl\s,~w log ? Y
• Invasive Species: Ndne.noted'
• Acces~ibility:.GOOd,.due-to~pasf-~.. re.,access_-,_.,,~.~
• Past Use: Grazed! harvested fofest / C::'

• Current Use: Grazed timber, wifli'~lanned fencingto.mafiage for timber production and wildlife habitat

Management Recommendations:
• Primary Recommendation: Medium FSI-remove 3lsqft/ac ofBA. Focus on removing maple, elm, thin

culls and suppressed trees. Manage for oak and hickory. Goal BA/ac is 69.0sqftlac

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re
evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Stand 4 has some very good quality mixed oak species present. Fencing out livestock is pertinent for timber and
wildlife goals. After fencing is complete, conduct a medium FSI. FSI should focus on removing undesirable trees
like maple and elm, thinning cull trees and suppressed trees. After undesirable, cull trees and suppressed trees are
removed and/or thinned focus on good crop tree spacing. When the FSI treatment is complete, the stand should be
stocked with well spaced mixed oak and hickory trees. Crop trees will have more resources to utilize and room to
grow. Natural regeneration of oaks and hickory trees will begin to occur with the increased amount of sunlight in
the stand. For more information on FSI, see attached FSI JS666.

15



Stand 5, 7.3 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 5-12% IBAlac.ITPAIAvg. DBH B-Level C-Level
Aspect: N Total: 90.0 436 6.2 .!i.~.?~~~':!.¥...~:'. 56 42

Site Index: --------- 1-----------_. .................. ...................
55 AGS: 33.3 33 13.6 BAlac.: 70.9 60.1

Stocking %: 82
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 23.3 376 3.4 TPA: 193 56
Merch. Vol./ac.: 4,062 bd-ft

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ....................
Mature: 26.7 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 8.2 14.0

Merch. TPA: 32
................... ........... ........................

Cull: 6.7 16 8.8
Merch. BAlac.: 53 --------- ------- ----- ----------_.

_Egy!~~ 0.0 -- --
Snag: 0.0

1--"'---1-------------

Top 5 spp. by BA:
Oak-White (36.7), Hickory-Shagbark (20.0), Oak-Northern Red (10.0), Ironwood (6.7), Oak-

....................................... ~~.~~.~~.~.~?.:~>. .........~....................................................................................................................................................................'"
Top 5 spp. by Ironwood (306), Hickory-Shagbark (53), Oak-White (18), Redcedar-Eastern (17), Oak-Shingle

TPA: (17)

ot

1Management Focus:
I) Marlage for timb.... er prod ct10n ocusi ixed oak and hickory 2) Manage for wildlife cover and hard mast

producidg,lrees .~ l I '!!!I

Soils an~TOp'raPhY: 11/
• Keswick 10~,-.2 to 9 perce:'t sl _ ,~o e ~ Avg. Site Index: 55
• Goss ~a",elly silt loan't, 9 to 14"'" ' pes~ero~ed

I'{~ \, 4~
Description!dtl:~anagem~int U , iIi[jiY

• Overstory: Composed of small-sa\V)og; wliite-oa , .
• Ulldetstory: Thicker, wiih saJIiJ1~fg:: Y • ood 't -

R I .9'-' \ .1\, . IF.";;'j' . -:1
• ege1eratl~Il.: Poor} wltl_1mam iN . -
• DomiralltSize~ass: Smtll sa)¥;iJ'
• Invas(ve Species: No~e not'~d E(JjJ.. __ -:-
• Accessibility: Good, .due to Rasture access and good forest tr'tils
• Past Use: Grazed! h~he~Qrest J
• CurrJllt-Use:-Grazed-timber,~ith.,planned.fencing.tQ man~e for timber production and wildlife habitat\" ~) ~

~> c.:r
Management Recommendations~~~

• Primary Recommendation: Light FSI-remove 20sqft/ac ofBA. Focus on removing ironwood, cedar, thin
culls and suppressed trees. Manage for oak and hickory.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re
evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Fencing out livestock is pertinent for timber and wildlife goals. After fencing is complete, conduct a light FSI. The
FSI should focus on removing ironwood, cedar and thinning cull trees. Once the FSI treatment is complete, the
stand will be left with a more open understory for good oak and hickory regeneration to take place. Monitor the
stand over the years following the FSI to identify if a commercial oak thinning is needed. For more information on
FSI, see attached FSI JS666.

16



Stand 6, 10.3 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 5-12% IBA/ac.ITPAIAvg. DBH IB-LeveIIC-Level
Aspect: S Total: 63.3 207 7.5 §.~.C?:~~'!.¥...~:'. 58 40

Site Index: --------- ----- ------------ .................. ...................
55 AGS: 30.0 25 14.8 BAlac.: 63.8 48.0

Stocking %: 57
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 20.0 165 4.7 TPA: 208 113
Merch. Vol./ac.: 2,455 bd-ft

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 3.3 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 7.5 8.8

Merch. TPA: 29
................... ........................

Cull: 10.0 16 10.7
Merch. BAlac.: 40 --------- ----- --------.-_.

__c;~.!!J!~ 0.0 -- ------- ----------_.
Snag: 0.0 -- -- >,

Top5spp. by Hickory-Bitternut (20.0), Walnut-Black (10.0), Hackberry (10.0), Oak-Northern Red (6.7), E1m-
BA: f.\~~r.~~.~~.J~:.?),...................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Top 5 spp. by Hickory-Bitternut (161), Hackberry (13), Elm-American (13), Walnut-Black (9), Hickory-
TPA: Shagbark (6)

tF-..""'-,.,-'''·.._, ...,,.....,.·_--¥'~~~ .....~

Management Focus: t~j;r,\\ 'I
~~:.:arl)r tim;:jciontocnsi . ~;;;dwaIn,;):::anageyf~rhard mast production for wildlife

Soils and'fopograPhY:.\ ~I Ii !!!J
• Keswick lo~, 5 to 9 percent sl , Jo~d i Avg. Site Index: 55
• Goss f1,Y-elly silt 10]1,9 to\l¢" bpes~eroded1\~ '(

Descriptionlo&~anagem nt U nd .;,;~~r
• Overstory: ComposedJfsmall' ~.Jog hlCOrj, W&1nU1, a a

: ~:::l;~~~;:~~~~~~~~~t~9l~ .~;~;~\~ckOry~aC{:;rJr:~:~~
. I '!t:Q,. - 'fl. ~~1fI fir' ~'l'!J:.'~ !f.1r5;'iU' 1,grazing. ..~> "'~';1L ~'!l" ['1 ,-'"~;","; ~"'jr r·' I' '3

• Domi~lallt Size Criiss: Smlll sa~;lo IJJ ,:;;, ,,11 ~:ff:~;({/~~}:i \!J'J::~
; ) \}" --~ -- - -;">4.-~'-' ., -'

• InvasiveSpecies: None notedI ...;j'-,:':":;;'F
• Acces~ibility: Good,'~u~~ture access and forest trails _ f'
• Past Use:_GrazedLhar.v.ested_forest_.~_ \'--''"''
• CurrentUse: Grazed timber, with planned fencing td man~ge for timber production and wildlife habitat

'i: "'L..J
Management Recommendations:" '\

• Primary Recommendation: Leave- no management is needed at this time

Observations/Comments:
Leave no management is needed at this time. Stand is currently at B-Ievel. Re-evaluate stand in 10 years

17



Stand 7,4.4 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 2-12% IBAJac.ITPA IAvg. DBH IB-LevelI C-Level
Aspect: W Total: 86.7 591 502 .::!.~.q,~~~~.?..~:. 57 42

Site Index: --------- ------------ ....66·..0·.... ...................
58 AGS: 43.3 40 14.1 BAlac.: 55.8

Stocking %: 87
................... ········3·:3....·..·'· ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 33.3 547 TPA: 244 72
Merch. Vol./ac.: 3,634 bd-ft

................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 10.0 0 0.0 Avg. DBH: 7.0 11.9

Merch. TPA: 34
................... ........... ........................

Cull: 0.0 -- --
Merch. BAlac.: 50 --------- ------- ----- ----------..

_g~.!!.J!:' 0.0 -- --1------ ----------_.
Snag: 0.0 --

Top 5 spp. by BA:
Oak-White (33.3), Elm-American (13.3), Oak-Northern Red (13.3), Redbud (10.0), Hackberry

........................................ ~~Q:Q)..............................................................................................................................................................................................
Top5spp. by

Elm-American (382), Redbud (115), Hackberry (51), Oak-White (32), Oak-Northern Red (5)
TPA:

Avg. Site Index: 58

hite oak and red oak 2) Manage for hard mast production for

'1- .
Man~gement Focus:
1) Manage for timber prod tion oc . ,
wildlife'foog 'i \ l

,J r-: 1Soils an~\Top~\raphy:
• Keswick lo~~ to 1 percept ~
• GOri~Si1~,:2 to 5\percent-s •.jt""~ lr......,
• Goss g'(avelly si1~ loam, 9 to 14 eroded I

DescriPtionl~~anagem~t U ItCond . r ""
• Overs~ory: C..'.o~Pbsed o~smaiI,sa~~p~''"e/,bak, ~O\k and hackberry
• undehtorfs~.Open,.}ith sapling {{ijpo 1!ll,",J1a<;,kb.~,1!P',.,1W·~ r~4,!w.d ,'-::'_,

I ",I>.. \' IiliJl I *,""",:?i\ ,jll:.ftWi.'_••",p,,, .. M' ·"" .. ·r,'",. '\\
• Rege'eration:.,~erate, 'fith 1~Tle~~~",!jl ~~gr~~llta~li;>i?~j:(l'l(:iq·lljt~;~·f
• Dominant Size ClasS': Small saw40:;// ',: j~.:, ::.:..1' ~>-;"c '3L:! <,~,[jj1 ) \\ --_. -"-'--- - - -c:::,'\ -. .: if .~
• Invas(ve Species: N?pe noteV . )~'c
• Acces~ibility: Good, tlue~~ture access f

• Past Use:-Grazedlhar.vested-fdt~st. Jlv
• Current Use: Grazed timber, with planned fencing td manage for timber production and wildlife habitat

"'\ ~/.)

'~~~)~ '---I

Management Recommendations:"'':''
• Primary Recommendation: Light FSI: Remove 20sqftlac of undesirable elm and hackberry. Goal BA is

66sqftlac.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time. Re-evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Stand 7 has some good quality red and white oak present. It is recommended that a light FSI be conducted to thin
undesirable trees and better space crop trees. Remove elm and hackberry from the stand first, and then thin
remaining BA to 66sqftlac. After the FSI, the stand should be left with well spaced crop trees. Regeneration will be
managed more for good oak and hickory production rather than undesirable elm and hackberry. For more
information on FSI, see attached FSI JS666.

18



Stand 8, 4.5 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 5-10% IBAlac.ITPAIAvg. DBH IB-LeveIIC-Level
Aspect: E Total: 76.7 297 6.9 .!i.~.?~~~'!.?..~:'. 57 38

Site Index: 60 --------. ----------_. .................. ...................
AGS: 43.3 38 14.5 BAlac.: 67.2 51.1

Stocking %: 69
................... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................

UGS: 10.0 193 3.1 TPA: 222 94
Merch. Vol./ac.: 3,404 bd-ft

................... ........... ........................ ........................... .................. ...................
Mature: 0.0 -- -- Avg. DBH: 7.5 10.0

Merch. TPA: 34
................... ........... ........................

Cull: 23.3 67 8.0
Merch. BAlac.: 50 -.------. ----- --.-----.-_.

__q~.!!.J!~ 0.0 -- ------- -----______ 0

Snag: 0.0 -- --

·..·Tr;1·;~~~§Y.Tf1·~·~~~~1~~~~~·~1~1·5:6~~;~i~~i~Ql-~E:-~ ~~·~tl-f4~:~~~b~~!(~j:6~~~~6r·:!2..............

Avg. Site Index: 60

1
ith small saw log shingle oak,

Management Focus:
1) Provide-a·riparian·buffer-fqr'f\1ture·pond·t~at will be constructed above the stand 2) Manage for timber

Prod~ction ofoak and waln'tirtr?~s ~
\ ~7 I .

Soils ~d'~Topograph~: \ l , ~f
• ~ni.th {~tl<lamI5 to 9 p Ifoll IJ. '1 F
• Keswick loam, 5 to 9~erc ro~S1I ~. III .'!!!!J

~
-. \ (~:;~~;>-:~I l

Descriptio ,gf-M~~Jge~entOn~~~~~~it~?~:l .,>

• Over I ~i"l: Composed ?f scattelll,rg~;s,.~~,' "
bur oaka~~ hackberry \ /'

• U1lde~storyf'0pen, withi,sapling ~"~~ si
• RegeAeratio1l: IVrOderate\ witt\-sl\iD~l~
• Domi~,a1ltrsiie61a~s: Srllall sa~'ibg \. ,
• I1lvasive Sp~cies: None n8,ted i~.'1 [:i,;if
• Accesfibility: G~;--')ith p~,stuJe:accest ....s-; v>,.' r

• Past Use: Grazed/harvested'fqrest ~ .~.'"
• curr+t Use: Grazedtim!?l;:I~with planned fencing to mana~ctfor timber production and wildlife habitat

Manageme~t R~~~~~~~~~tiO~~;\ /)~
• Primary Recommendation: Ligh!:~SI: crop tree r~lease~Manage for 10 - 20 crop trees/ac. It is

recommended to foliar spray buck brush, multi-flora rose, prickly ash and weeds around sprouting crop
trees like oak and walnut. Goal BA is 60sqft/ac.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re
evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Fencing out livestock is pertinent for timber and wildlife goals. After fencing is complete, conduct a crop tree
release which should focus on mixed oak and walnut. Release crop trees on four sides to ensure that trees have
adequate space to grow. For more information on crop tree release, see attached crop tree management information
sheet and FSI JS666.

19



Stand 9, 9.7 ac. # Sample Plots: 3

Slope: 5-9%

Aspect: E
Site Index: 55

Stocking %: 62

Merch. Vol./ac.: 2,486 bd-ft

Merch. TPA: 30

Merch. BA/ac.: 43

IBA/ac.~Avg. DBH

Total: 70.0 272 6.9
--------- -----------.
.......1.5!.~:. 33.3 29 .......!~:.? ...;;;..

UGS: 23.3 177 4.9................... . ..
Mature: 0.0 -- --................... . ..

Cull: 13.3 66 6.1
--------- ----- ----------_.__q~.!.~~ 0.0 _:: :: .

Snag: 0.0 -- --

IB-LevelI C-Level

/i.~.?:~~,!g,..~:. ......?.:........ ......~.~........
BA/ac.: 64.9 46.9. ..

TPA: 239 121................................................................
Avg. DBH: 7.1 8.4

..:.~~..~.~:~ ~..~~.~. ~;:.;.:~~~l;.ti~ ..~~=~~:::~~.~~.~~~:~.~:.~~.~:~~.~:.~~~ ..~~.~:~~:..~~~~.~~~:~~: ..~~:~~.:.~~.~~:~~ .
Top 5 spp. by Elm-American (167), Hackberry (38), Hickory-Shagbark (21), Hickory-Bitternut (10),

TPA: Honeylocust (9) '-,,':1:

MaXagement Focus: ~f~' "l
I) Mafutain riparian~"'I water/s e n~~.~:.::.:a Wi;!..;rridnr 2) Manage fnr mixednakand walnnt

::;:o:?;::t::~y7r{ro u ~IJIf ~
• Keswick 10~,.J to 9 percent slwo<led I _ Avg. Site Index: 55

I~\ \ ?
Descriptionl:~!Manakemfnt Un ~':.o.n:d·· •

• Overs!o1'J'~~~omposed ,fscatt large ith small saw log hickory,
shingle oak;ho~y locust and, .•?~~:-... ~

• UIlderstOry.: Openj~due.to liv'est~~¥r1.• '· ered sapling to pole sized elm, walnut, hickory, hackberry

and honey fCilst'-.J \ "18 :l '.r.,. 'II
• RegeJeration:J!.5!.0r, with'mainly;u ',")~- .'[1

growTglsprouting--.. \ 13/ _ fJ SJJ~I ~
• Dominant Size clas~~arg1sa'w log ~
• Illvaslve Species: None noteat .J'
• Acces~lbilifY,: G.90q,_cIY~~t!!r.!<...~C~~.LQ1Jll01h.l;iides 0flstand
• PastUse: Grazed! harvested fd~~\st ) )
• CurrentUse: Grazed timber, wit~ planned fencingJQ...IDJ!nage for timber production and wildlife habitat

,~\..

Management Recommendations:
• PrimaryRecommendation: Light FSI- Remove 20sqft/ac of hackberry, elm, honeylocust and cull trees. It

is recommended to foliar spray buck brush, multi-flora rose, prickly ash and weeds around sprouting crop
trees like oak and walnut. Goal BA is 50sqft/ac.

• Alternative Option: Leave this stand to naturally mature at this time, do not fence out livestock. Re
evaluate this area in 10 years.

Observations/Comments:
Fencing out livestock is pertinent for timber and wildlife goals. After fencing is complete, conduct a light FSI to
remove less desirable elm, honeylocust, hackberry and cull trees. Foliar spray prickly ash, buck brush, multi-flora
rose, and around seedling crop trees (specifically walnut). These species can consume a stand making it impossible
for good regeneration to occur. When foliar spraying, mix glyphosate at 10% with water to deaden said species. By
conducting a FSI, removing all listed species above, good regeneration (oak and walnut) is being managed for. Oak,
hickory and walnut trees that are left will naturally regenerate the stand. Continually monitor this stand to identify if
future foliar treatments are needed. For more information on FSI, see attached FSI job sheet JS666.

20 ?



RECORD OF DECISIONS SUMMARY/ACTIVITY SCHEDULE

To assist with meeting your individual objectives, the following planned practices and treatment
activities will help achieve and insure sustained forest health, improve water quality, and
increase wildlife habitat associated with your forest. The plan should be implemented according
to the following prioritized schedule.

Stand

2
3

4
5'(

'.
6 -'"\
7 '..,

8

9

Acres

8.5
9.7
19.8

35.0
7.3
10.3
4.4

(4.5

Practice Code or Treatment
Activi
FSI (PC 666)
FSI (PC 666)
FSI (PC 666)

Treatment Details

Li ht FSI: Reduce BA by 25s ft/ac
Light FSI: Reduce BA by 20s ft/ac
Light FSI: CTR- Manage for 48 crop
trees/ac

Planned
Date

Winter 2014
Winter 2014
Winter 2012

Winter 2013
Winter 2015

Winter 2015
Winter 2015

Winter 2014

21

Completed
Date



~

=Q.....
~

1-1
I

Avg. Site Index: --

I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

----~

Management Focus:
I) Wildlife habitat. 2) Timber Production.

Soils and Topography:
• Soil Type I

Description of Management Unit Condition:
• Overstory: Patchy. Localized species composition depends on past management and residual trees from

previous ownership. Contains an area of pretty nice white oak. Open grown oaks walnut elm and hackberry
are scattered. Some areas of open pole-size timber some areas of very crowded polelsapling size timber.

• Understory: Patchy. Walnut scattered throughout. Some oak hickory and patchy persimmon clumps.
Much elm throughout especially at east end.

• Regen eration: Patchy. Very lillie desirable regen. Mostly thick wi non-woody plants.
• Dominant Size Class: Pole.
• InvasiveSpecies: Multiflora rose.
• Accessibility: Good - very rocky.



Appendix II - Description of Forest Management Practices

• Crop Tree Release (CTR) - (NRCS Practice Code 666) - A form of Forest Stand Improvement. Release
only targeted crop trees. Usually used on young, even-aged stands, or stands that contain only a small
percentage of desirable trees. Instead of treating the entire stand, as in a traditional FSI treatment, only the
competing trees around each crop tree are treated. When complete, each crop tree should have clear sky
around its crown. In very young stands, the crop trees should not be released on all four sides ofthe
canopy, as competition is essential to keep young trees growing tall and straight.

• CTR - See Crop Tree Release.
• Edge Feathering - (NRCS Practice Code 645) - Some areas can benefit from the creation of a transition

zone between field and forest. This can be done by felling existing trees into the edge of the field. The
result of these activities will be a "brushy" strip in which small game animals will be able to find security
cover. Prior to edge feathering, the area to be covered by the downed trees should be sprayed with a non
selective herbicide, such as glyphosate, to remove fescue and further promote annual weeds and woody
vegetation.

• Environmental Harvest - See Selective Harvest.
,,-,·-·"Forest"Stand·Ime~oY~J,Dent·(FSIh-(NRCS Practice Code 666) - Forest stands typically need thinning of

'c." undesirables and s~ppre~sed trees in"order to promote the health and vigor of selected crop trees, or to
') encourage increased regJner~t~9n~'i"¥uch like weeding a garden, identify desirable trees based on your
'\'mal,lagement objehiJ\es ~n .f ·,.~~?;"I. able trees that ¥~/c~ ~ipg. Can be prescribed as light, medium,
01fHeavy.~~"·~ \. r'l ;"fl '.

• FSI - See~Forest Stand 1m ~Jjlit
• GIJde Restor~ion-'(NRC e -0 ~ . - ;.(reas-that s b, ' gns ofa natural glade should be

restor~d to a glade ecd~e. fRemcwi~ct}re in!plc:;~ant species, and' t~uce the total canopy cover to <30%,
utilizib'g16H~ore\tStand ImproJ:fuenC(666) practice. These areas should-be burned on a 1-5 year
rotatiijij;,,?epe~i~g on'he spec~~irequir~me~t'~1~£t.I1e', pp~iTIet\~f;'seedingmay be required if the
native vegt!tation does not ret~Iollowin:g~t4ejr~~futro', 9 .. qn\9fj"IJ:~' {',M,

• Gro~p op;i1ing~-. (N~C~ l(r~~(jf~'~o1i~~5)'~~es~tifrti~gs'?~v~'gfbt benefit to a variety ~fwildlife
species. T~~y provide hl!,bltanha~:fap'b~i,)l~~cl by a number of species as forage, escape and beddmg cover.
Tempbrarylqpening~ wi11\~ften r~g~~~r.i!g,,~#hAe~i~!lBAr,~l!K(§Re<;:ie~r:tp~~,~.~eq.,s}gnjJ:icaQt,§~n~ight tP.12L:

thrive1 These'sh~d OCCtiiWhe~J1If~::to/(~n~~W~I~f;J~~~\~~~IY,~r~g~i~1i!!.~n~w~t~~~ni1~i~o~lplbe
a ~~nfmum of~ ti~es)theli~ig~t::.9JtQ~~suft9u@il}g:1.irri]:[~r....~~~i.,}~Oi{96t:C®QPY~1!49. f6ot:;bp~nin~
minimum). This wll~,ensure~hatthere IS year-round sunlightteaching the forest floor m these areas.

• Invasive Species Er~dicatiotf- (NRCS Practice Code 666) ~ Some stands can become overtaken by non
nativJ,jm~asiY~eJm.eJ'~$:SU~J:i:~sJ~J,l1iLLhQJ:I,ey~u~kl~,j!l the qhHerstory. These exotic species can prevent the
germination/growth ofall othel\~pecies. The most cdst-elfective method for controlling these species is to
foliar spray during the growing season (June-Sept~m:!?~)?Inconjunction with this, larger plants may need
to be cut and chemically treated ifth,ey are too large to properly treat with handheld spray equipment. In
order to get optimum long-term results, treatment will need to be repeated every couple of years until the
seed bank is exhausted. Even at that point in time, periodic "touch-Up" treatments will be necessary if there
is a different seed source in the area.

• Leave - These areas are currently in acceptable condition. No management is recommended at this time.
• Post Harvest Slashing - (NRCS Practice Code 384) - Associated with any timber sale is damage, of

some degree, to the residual stand. The function of this practice is to re-enter the stand after harvest and
treat all damaged and non-merchantable timber. This will further release the residual crop trees from
competition. Additionally, it will create a more open environment that will be conducive to desirable
regeneration. For wildlife benefits, it is recommended to leave several den/cavity trees per acre. These
trees are worth very little economically, but are essential habitat for a number of birds and small mammals.
Slashing generally follows a Shelterwood or Seed Tree harvest.

• Prescribed Burning - (NRCS Practice Code 338, 394 (Firebreaks» - Prescribed fire is an essential
management tool for maintaining Glade, Savanna, and Woodland Communities, and can, under certain
circumstances, be beneficial in forest settings. This practice should only be completed by professionals or
after completing training. Ifnot done properly, burning a forest can result in significant damage to the
standing timber, or escape into areas that were not intended to be burned.

23



• Pruning - (NRCS Practice Code 660) - Typically recommended for stands that contain a high number of
desirable young trees, pruning can greatly help the potential of these trees to develop into high-value timber
trees. Pruning can also help in maintaining tree health by removing dead and damaged branches. Improper
pruning techniques can result in damage to the tree.

• Regeneration Harvest - It can be beneficial to deaden all trees in a given stand. This can be due to the
stand being in a state of over-maturity, low quality, poor species composition, damaged from a natural
disaster, or some combination thereof. A Regeneration Cut should be followed by Post-Harvest Slashing to
deaden all remaining trees. Seed-Tree and Shelterwood harvests are types of Regeneration Harvests, in
which increasingly higher numbers of trees are left to provide a seed source and protection for the new
regeneration.

• Riparian Buffer - (NRCS Practice Code 391) - Areas along major streams should be maintained as a
riparian (streamside) buffer. Timber management may still take place, however road construction and the
use of mechanized equipment should be limited. Minimize the number of stream crossings and try to
reduce the number of large trees falling into the waterway. Canopy/Basal Area should be maintained
higher than other stands in order to provide shade to the stream and to minimize any erosion potential.
Large trees near the stream bank may be left to add bank stability.

• Savanna Restoration - (NRCS Practice Code 643) - Areas displaying characteristics of a historical

\J' savanna ecosystem~sfiouldbe restored to such. Historically, these areas were subject to periodic fire that
maintained this e&8type'\in a relativel~ open state (below 10-30% canopy closure). Select individual trees
of!ire tolerant sp~cief t~ le~~~!$.~·@l~~r{sidual st~nd util~i~&;Jhe ~orest Sta~d Impr~vement (666) pr~ctice.
T1iese ar~~~houl~.b1bOa.~iffonl)li.?J ~*~r F~~~S~~1;;.d~SrnWr,~~~~ ~~e, sy~~,~lfic reqUlr~ments of~he site. .
S~plem~ptal'seedm9 may~;~tr$},~~~d~m~~W~~J;'.:~;*t~~ra~9P ~ ~~fj~rn foll~wl~g the re-introduction
off~e: A~~lthy savpnna IS~;V~:Q:1~e~~~~'~.~~~0~. Id",~ft"le~ ofwIldhfe.. .

• Selective Harv~st - I\or usern maintaining an uneven-age stand. S!9.~kmg IS usually mamtamed around
the "B'~le~l. Generally, matur~1;i;ees;a;'e'cut'along with suppressed, damaged and undesirable trees. For
most ~~~s, tfie'rdidual\~tandw'rfr:~v of :;l • • ~$,~glquality in the small saw log
size cias~.(12"-18" DBB). Th e-t e - rvest. Additionally, by
remotin~nd~irable skecies i_~ the e -' ~lS !;;;;pies composition of the
regenerating and'Role-si~e class a progression to a higher percent of desirable species. If

done torrett.tl;y..,.~~~ctiV~.. h...arve.Iiff'i I Ie. to b"-ere eated every 10-20 years in perpetuity. f...'
• Shelterwoo~ Harvest - See Reg~n'. F;J

• Seed YrreeHirvest - See \ege{~f~tt2J/ /1:...../ 1/<: l
• Timbkr Stand ImPriwemen,t (TYI) =-See-Forest- tan - mptoveD,1 . ~ ':!:J

• Tree/lshrub Planti" - (N~¢S Practice Code 612, 490 (Sit~~aratiOn)) - It can be desirable to
convert a field into a f()rest-ofb:?articular tree species through.planting. This allows for easier management
ofthely<5Un-g1re'es-a'sth'ey-gre-~rWing1h-gn4flhe'iieldwayeclaimed by natural forest. Planting shrubs is
an e~c~llent way to improve bfll~~y habitat and es~a~e co)er for small animals. This can be done as a
transition from forest to field, or'!is"a stand-alone area-of-bover.

• Underplanting - (NRCS Practice"'Code 612) - Due to the lack of desirable regeneration in some stands, it
is recommended that select species be planted. Choose desirable species and plant in canopy gaps in areas
where they occur naturally. Ex: Oaks - upland. Oak and Walnut -lower slopes.

• Vine Removal- (NRCS Practice Code 666) - Forest stands, especially those in a creek or river bottom,
can have a large number ofquality trees that are being suppressed by grape vines. If left untreated these
vines can ultimately kill a tree, increase the potential for storm damage due to increased weight and leaf
surface area at the top of the canopy. Vines growing on crop trees should be cut and treated with an
approved herbicide to prevent resprouting. Vines may be left on less desirable trees to provide a valuable
food resource for wildlife. Do not try to pull the vines out of the trees, as this can cause more harm than
good. The dead vines do not affect the tree and will fall off as the attachment points decay. Some vines,
such as poison ivy and virginia creeper, typically grow on interior branches instead of over the canopy of
the tree, and therefore are not as detrimental as grape vines can be.

• Woodland Restoration - (NRCS Practice Code 643) - Can be thought of as a very open forest.
Historically, these areas were subject to periodic fire that maintained this ecotype in a relatively open state
(50-80% canopy closure). Select individual trees of fire tolerant species to leave as the residual stand
utilizing the Forest Stand Improvement (666) practice. These areas should be burned on a 1-7 year
rotation, depending on the specific requirements of the site. Supplemental seeding may be required if the

24



native vegetation does not return following the re-introduction of fire. A healthy woodland community is a
very beneficial environment for a wide variety of wildlife.

• Woody Cover Control (WCC) - (NRCS Practice Code 645) - This practice is used to control unwanted
or undesirable woody trees or brush that are overtaking the desired habitat.

Appendix III - Definition of Forestry Terms

•ound (at breast height). When
,"pressedas square feet of basal

Acceptable Growing Stock (AGS): Trees of desirable species and form to achieve the management objectives for
a given stand.

Ac.: Acre
Acre: An area ofland containing 43,560 square feet, or 10 square chains.
Advance Regeneration: Seedlings and saplings that develop or are present in the understory.
Agroforestry: A land-use system that involves deliberate introduction or mixing of trees in crop and animal

production.
AGS: Acceptable Growing Stock.
Aspect: The predominant direction that a slope faces (north, south, etc.).
Average Diameter: The diameter of the tree ofaverage basal area in a stand, (the quadratic mean diameter).
B-LeveI:'-Ameasiifirofstocl{ifig~onrstan(rin which all growing resources can utilized when each tree is utilizing

\, the maximum po~~i6Ie growing spac~. The minimum stocking level at which the stand is considered fully

BA: B~'s~~;~:~: ,V" 'I. \ ( '00.,) '.'

Basal Area: Thei~ross-.seetlonala ,uar
tli':fasal \fu-ea o~ll tHe tre "'d
area.~er aC~~NZhiCh i~ a measu/ •, a~ el1S1 .

B~.-Ft.: B~ard!:R~' . \ \. G~/ ~. .
BIltmore she, graduated sbck used, te tree diameter b It agafnst the tree at breast height.
Board Foot:. it for~easuring woo i.~coJpf6·\ r~he amount of wood in a tree,

sawlog, or~;individual pi~ce of J er. A ",,¥,,~~6flJoo \gll (~wide, and I inch thick (144

cUbic~nche~ \ ..~ ~;' ~
Bolt: A short log or~ squared timber cU(fii,oJ;Il,a 199;tu~ually less.than 8 feet long.

Browse: TWi~s, le~~~~m~buds\~.fPlan,gtl~;§,~WI~tr~;~sl9J,~Foft7..,,~~te &.'I
Buck: To sawj~elled frees mto shotter led.m II ,lEnll)r''ll~:j~''~~!J If
Buffer Strip: !A protecti~trip of~nd 31,1r . djacen.ttojln'dt.~ai~gu . .0 .. • ~mple, a

protective strip of unparvest~djfreesalong a stream. ~
C-Level: A measure of stocking of a~~and in which the stand is expected to reach B-Level in 10 years ifleft to

l --'}'\ z: /,.,1grow.i \~-,-_-_~-_'" 'tv
Cambium: The growing layer ofcells b;speaththe bark of afree from which new wood and bark develop.
Canopy: ~he more or less continuous co¥~ of branches all-a folillge formed collectively by the tops, or crowns of

adjacent trees. ;::"
Cavity Tree: See Den Tree.
Chain: A unit oflinear measurement, which equals 66 feet.
Clearcut: A harvest and regeneration technique that removes all trees from an area at the same time, resulting in an

even-aged stand.
Clinometer: An instrument for measuring the angle of slopes.
Co-dominant tree (crown class): Trees whose crowns form the general level of the forest canopy and receive full

sunlight only from above.
Competition: The struggle for survival that occurs when organisms make similar demands on environmental

resources.
Conifer: A cone-bearing tree with needles, such as pines, spruces, and firs, that produces wood commonly known

as softwood.
Cord: A stack of wood and air containing 128 cubic feet. A standard cord measures 4 feet x 4 feet x 8 feet.
Crop Tree: A tree identified to be grown to maturity for the final harvest cut, usually on the basis of its location

with respect to other trees and its timber quality.
Crown: The branches and foliage of a tree.
Cruise: A survey of forest land to locate timber and estimate its quantity by species, products, size, quality, or other

characteristics; the estimate obtained in such a survey.

25



Cruiser Stick: See Biltmore Stick.
Cull: A tree ofdesirable species that should be removed due to crowding, suppression, poor form, or structural

defect.
DBH: Diameter at Breast Height.
Defect: Any feature that lowers the utility or commercial value of timber. Defects include rot, crookedness, limb

scars, cavities, and cracks.
Dendrology: The study of trees and their identifying characteristics.
Den Tree: A living tree with a cavity large enough to shelter wildlife. Also called cavity tree.
Diameter at Breast Height (DBH): The diameter ofa tree at 4.5 feet above ground level
Diameter Tape: A specially graduated tape used to determine tree diameter when stretched around the

circumference ofthe tree stem.
Dibble Bar: A flat or round metal tool used to make holes for planting tree seedlings.
Dominant Tree (crown class): Tree with its crown above the general level of the canopy that receives full sunlight

from above and partial light from the sides.
Edge: The more or less well-defined boundary between two or more elements ofthe environment, e.g. a field

adjacent to a woodland or the boundary between two different silvicultural treatments.
Epicormic Branch: A weak stem arising from the trunk or branch of a tree, often following exposure to increased

~lighrotiite·:-Epkbmif~;~proutitrg-c~n be an indicator of stress.
Even~Aged Management~7Fore~t managemdtt with periodic harvest of all trees on part of the forest at one time or

\over a short perioa tolpr9d~c . ,,~~jGontaining trees all.~h~~ame or nearly the s~me age.

Face Cord:) A stac.k of wJ,od and a . .and.. 8 feet 10ng~.'C..~~.~..p._Q '.oflogs of varymg length.
F~lling: Tlie pr~cFo~tting sta 'lift II' 61 1.11
F~rebreak\,O{ Flrel!ee: A natural . ~i~?g}e ~~~I 0J>Jt ~,
Firsts and Seconds (RAS): The highes po-grade orardwo'otlluml)

:~~::::I~~~~;~~;~}~i~f.en~t~g ~ d oth9rl~y PI::t.S. ~;~~'" 1,~~4. .
Forest Mana~e~nt: Tlie application us-me nWft~~~~ttH~2~~onservatIon offorests to meet

specific goals. \... .. Itl' 'i;",,;.!.i)J fj.,i'",• ....... I!llJ .c''-''~'" "-'~" I
Forest Stand.~~prove~t(FSP: A(tIri~i~J. I fore~ stan to improve'dle overall ~ompositi?n, structure,

cond!llOn,i}..~!.h, a~d gr'?,~h of/~i;~fsl~4" iT;'"! ees, as 'well as to encourage regeneratIon of desirable ~'"

specljs. At!~o K'how-n as 'Fjmber S~aq9, l ~e!lle,nt,," ,'F)', ~ '''~!¥I''~!\ Am'" fj' ,,-n, .J.~~
Forest Type: rcate'~oJ.:Y- of forest\Isual~rdJtjn.,.;~ R=. ~'1j~d~~ ;~Je;lj~g2hilC}~\c~~J;ofest

type. ~ \\ ~ ~~lj _ :#fj '-J. iJfJJ~ a¥J'1~fm f4J~
Forester: A person who is responsi6 e for the proper management oPa' or.es ; who has been educated in forestry at

a collbge or universi~,,-
Fully Stoc~e~! RaQge of stockinglL..,,~in which all growin~ spa'j;a d resources in a stand can be utilized by the

existing trees. \> ) ~

Girdling: Completely encircling the tru~ofa tree with a ,cutthat-severs the bark and cambium ofthe tree.
Herbicide is usually injected into~ih~ cut to ensure'~fthe tree.

Grading: Evaluating and sorting trees, logs, or lumber according to quality.
Habitat: The place where a plant or animal normally lives, such as a forest, prairie, or swamp.
Hardwood: A term describing broadleaftrees, usually deciduous, such as oaks, maples, and ashes.
Harvest: In general use, the removal of all or portions of the trees .on an area. It can mean removing trees on an

area to obtain income, to develop the environment necessary to regenerate the forest, and on occasion, to
achieve special objectives, such as the development of wildlife habitat. Contrast this technique with
intermediate cuttings.

Heal-in: To store young trees before planting by placing them in a trench and covering the roots with soil.
Height, merchantable: The commercial height above the ground at which a tree stem is saleable for a particular

product.
Height, total: Tree height from the ground level to top.
High-grading: Cutting only the high-value trees from a forest property, leaving a stand of poor quality with

decreased future timber productivity.
Hypsometer: A graduated stick used to estimate tree height. It is often combined with a Biltmore Stick.
Increment Borer: An auger-like instrument with a hollow bit that is used to extract cores from trees for growth and

age determination.

, 26



whereby all trees are tallied on

Intermediate Cut: Removing immature trees from the forest sometime between establishment and stand harvest to
improve the quality of the remaining forest stand. Contrast this technique with a harvest cut.

Intermediate Trees (crown class): Trees with crowns below the general level ofthe canopy that receive some
sunlight from above but none from the sides.

Landing: A place where logs are taken to be loaded on trucks for transport to the mill.
Log Rules: A table showing estimated amount of lumber that can be sawed from logs of given lengths and

diameters. Two log rules are commonly used in Missouri:
Doyle Rule is a simple formula rule used in the eastern and southern United States. It underestimates the

amount oflumber in small logs and overestimates large logs.
Internatlonai l/s-inch Rule is a formula rule allowing 1/2 -inch taper for each 4 feet oflength and 1/16

inch shrinkage for each one-inch board This measure closely approximates the actual sawmill
lumber tally.

Logger: An individual whose occupation is harvesting timber.
Lump Sum Timber Sale: Standing timber is sold for a fixed amount agreed upon in advance; the sale may cover a

given acreage, tracts, certain species, or diameter classes of trees. Distinguished from a scale or unit sale in
which payment is based on the amount harvested, e.g. so many dollars per thousand board feet.

Mast: Nuts of trees, such as oak, walnut, and hickory, that serve as food for many species of wildlife.
Matur~-T..ee:'-"A-tfelnharlia:s7reathea·the-desired size or age for its intended use.
MBF:. Abbreviation for l;qbo bg~rd feet, us~g the Roman numeral M.
Mercti:~erchantable. r \ I ({::~;l["~!;\(1
Merc.hanta~le: T,~,~art 9fa p-ee qrHliifdibftr~~~ t~~! can be ed into a saleable product.
Multiple Vse: ~a.~ac. ma!.9ge"1ent ·\?f.:.,...... 'e;' u . -11 ;'(~tion, water, wildlife, water,

recreationsforage, and aesth~n Sf' . rs

Overstocked: j Forest's~n.d co?dition/iri /" ',l'>00 ~·av e~e~ ar pl"ese~ q[1'i;pfimum growth. Not enough
resou~~~,~re .avl\,llabl, for ea~h.~ee1 o~Jal~ U§.O}Jmmum requirements.

Overstory: T\l~t po·rtl0~J)fthe$treesm a tormmg the;Up er crown cover. I

Overtopped: 8~~ suppressed tr~es. 'il
Planting Bar:l Ailat)d tool used-to pla g

t -'......_ '\
Plot Sample Cruise: i\,method\qfestima: i"St

plots ~ith fixed boundades. '---"', "1
Point Sample ~rui~km.~thod~forest" &,;,., ~~,timhet,.sr· IUIJl~ wi

I bl d""" A' tr'lL. t ...• ~.~. '~a~t
p ot pun anes,-.... n ms u.ren k-~, d";~;J i.,.'11 iIi:;.'l~~rtW ~~ i?~k
counted at each poiht]Bas'llJ At'~ijJan:Q&Tr~s p~r;~c~ cill\ _ '. etldl'p dl

variable plot sampling or pri§m'cruising. ,,~~d
Pole Saw: A ~aw attached to"'a.Jong p'ifle for pruning tree limbs withouFusing a ladder.
Pole Timber: 1~.!]1..§inch~:lg inches in diameter at brea~tAit?ight.
Prescribed Burn: To deliberately burri'natural fuels under s~ecif1e;weather conditions, which allows the fire to be

confined to a predetermined are~\'apd produces theL~rel!lJ~nsity to meet predetermined objectives.
Props: In mining, round, squared or splidii:Qbers that support the roof
Prism, Wedge: An instrument that incorporates a fixed angle and can e used to determine basal area. See point

sample cruise.
Pruning: Removing live or dead branches from standing trees to improve wood quality.
Pulpwood: Wood cut primarily for manufacture of paper, fiberboard, or other wood fiber products.
Regeneration: Seedlings or saplings existing in a stand. The process by which a forest is renewed, either

artificially by direct seeding or planting, or naturally by self-sown seeds and sprouts.
Regeneration Cut: Any removal of trees intended to assist regeneration already present or to make regeneration

possible.
Release: To free trees from competition by cutting, removing, or killing nearby vegetation.
Riparian Zone: The area adjacent to or on the bank of rivers and streams. Identified by topography, vegetation,

wildlife, and other characteristics unique to these locations.
Rotation: The number of years required to establish and grow trees to a specified size, product, or condition of

maturity. For example, oaks may have an 80-year rotation for sawlogs, and scotch pine a 10 year rotation
for Christmas trees.

Salvage Cut: Cutting dead trees, or trees damaged or dying due to pests, fire, ice damage, or disease, to recover
economic value that would otherwise be lost.

Sapling: Trees from 2 inches to 6 inches in diameter at breast height.

27



I

Sample Plot: A group of trees in a fixed area selected for inclusion in forest inventory data.
Sawtimber: Trees at least 12 inches in diameter at breast height from which a sawed product can be produced.

Small Sawtimber is considered 12"-18" DBH and Large Sawtimber is considered greater than 18" DBH.
Scale Stick: A flat stick calibrated so that log volumes can be read directly when the stick is placed on the small

end of a standard length log.
Scaling: Estimating usable wood volume in a log.
Seed-tree Harvest: A harvest and regeneration method where nearly all trees are removed at one time except for

scattered trees to provide seed for a new forest. Results in an even-aged stand. Sometimes used in
Missouri to regenerate pine.

Seedlings: New trees less than 2 inches in diameter at breast height grown form seeds or sprouts. Also, trees grown
in a nursery for one or more years.

Selection Harvest: Harvesting trees to regenerate and maintain a multi-aged structure by removing some trees in
all size classes either singly or in small groups.

Shade Tolerance: The capacity ofa tree to develop and grow in the shade of, and in competition, with other trees.
An example ofa tree with high shade tolerance is sugar maple.

Shake: A crack in a log that follows a growth ring. Very common in large cottonwood logs.
Shelterwood Harvest: A harvesting and regeneration method that entails a series of partial cuttings over a period

"f·-(jfyeats-itnIre-ma.~~;~~~ntl:-Ea.fly'e.uttings improve the vigor and seed production of the remaining trees.
~.~ The trees that are,r¢tained produce se)d and also shelter the young seedlings. Subsequent cuttings harvest
~helterwood treesland alrow'r~1?~~eration to develop as an even-aged stand.

Silviculture: The art and ~lciehcd o If'" .'.' l.a forest to meet .~ opjec~J'Ies ofthe landowner.
Site: Thetaiea in fii.ic~~~larlt ot, )\ Si.Wi'b..~ld"'· .""1', climatic, topographical, and

soil factot\. \ !filL I:.~
Site Index: 'Apexp;es~on of forest SIequ..... }~" . 'pn1:·e- eight-of a rr~Y.£Li/ wing dominant or co-dominant tree

at ag~ ~Q. (or age,100 in the ~.s qi.ted St~es1... ~.
Site Preparati "l:PreRaring at area of or rorest estab.lishment.

I '--lb d J .contro r presen e uummg.
Skid Trail: Alr~trailover\which~
Skidding: Pu\ling logs-from wh~re they . ~r rm .
Slash: The tre1etops and b?anche~eft bn .er logging or as a result ofa storm, fire, or pruning.

Slope: Degre9 ofd~ion.dfa s¥ace M~l J ~~3i:W ,;IJf~! fA,~QM:~~~ iI}:~
degrees. Expressed as a ratIO, t Il!O e,jli . e~(J.JJnl'.ana1tli~j .... _eJiY;~ the
vertickl distanc~'Se)\ as \1. . ~ ~: _ ~~§ ~~ __ .~ _\.;>....~ ~~.9ii!fJ&rgi-€1s;Zt ...t... _ _ tll~
angle~om the honz~ntal plane, with a 90 degree slope bem~frtica.l'(200%) and a45 degree slope bemg a
1:1 slope (100%). '- ~ I"

Snag: A standing dead tree. Vahiabl~~.____ iJ\J
Softwoods: See conifer. ~\ ) ~
Stand: A group of trees with similar cha~~rteristics, such ~s species, age, or condition that can be distinguished

from adjacent groups. A stand is~uS!;:1ally treated as a single unit in a management plan.
Stave Bolts: Material cut from the white oak group and used in the manufacture of wooden barrels.
Stocking: An indication of the number and size of trees in a stand in relation to the desirable number and size of

trees for best growth and management. 100% stocking is considered to be the maximum number of trees of
the given size classes present in which all trees are receiving the minimum nutrient requirements to live.
Thinning activities will generally reduce stocking to predetermined levels, such as B-Level or C-Level.
See overstocked and understocked.

Stumpage: The value of timber as it stands uncut in the woods on the stump.
Succession: The natural process of change on a site from one plant community to another.
Sustainable Forest Management: The practice of meeting forest resource needs and values of the present without

compromising the similar capability of future generations.
Suppressed Trees (crown class): Trees with small crowns that are entirely below the level of the canopy and

receive no direct sunlight. Also called overtopped trees.
Sweep: The extent to which a tree trunk or log diverges from straight.
Shearing: To trim back and shape tree branches, making foliage dense and giving the tree a conical form. Used to

produce Christmas trees.
Taper: The decrease in diameter from the large end ofa log to the small.

28



•
(

Thinning: Generally, a cutting or killing of trees in an immature forest stand to reduce the tree density and
concentrate the growth potential on fewer, higher quality trees.

Timber Stand Improvement (TSI): See Forest Stand Improvement.
TPA: Trees per Acre.
Tree Farm: A privately owned forest or woodland where the production of wood fiber is a primary goal. It is

certified as a Tree Farm by the American Tree Farm System, an organization sponsored by the American
Forest foundation in Washington D.C.

UGS: Unacceptable Growing Stock.
Unacceptable Growing Stock: Trees of undesirable species and/or form forthe management goals ofa given

stand, which should be removed in a thinning.
Understocked: Insufficiently stocked with trees. Each tree in the stand could be utilizing its maximum amount of

space and resources, and there will still be excess room in the stand.
Understory: All forest vegetation growing under an overstory.
Uneven-Aged Management or Stand: A stand of trees containing at least three age classes intermingled on the

same area.
Variable Point Sampling: See Point Sample Cruise.
Veneer: A thin sheet of wood sliced or peeled on a veneer machine and often used for decorative plywood or for

c-·····su:I'fa"cin!rfu:rn:itu:I'e.~ \._
VenJer Log: A large (usually more than 18 iilches in diameter), knot-free, high-quality log from which veneer is

"b'd "\ I 11,0 tame .J I i"

Volume:"~~e amount of ,*000 in Oftrees, orl~g, as<;brd.i.il
.... d f //'.. bi f .1 \ "".,-, "r:i!! I'i'N

bpar oot, co tS 001; etc. ""... .' t"";:"'711111 !'i\~j V
Volume Tll?le: A'~~ble estimfting ",.\:;..;m ".'fiJi,.:' (~tr?~ltt~t e measurements. The

measl!rements,ffi0st commonlj' y~rei5B1ilandmetcfiantable-'eL,!
Wolf Tree: Aparge, spreading.tree th1!t,is-Q.r~i~}open.gro~n, or one that is using more than its share ofavailable

resou.~ ~ '( 1

J

29



DEC 05 ttl j}~

President
KENNY LOVELACE

NACO Board Member
2605 County Roed 325

Palmyra. MO 63461
(573) 822-2545

kennyl1t'O>centurvlel nel

1st Vice President
BRUCE BIERMANN

1529 Sunset Blvd
Mound City, MO 64470

(660) 491-5263

2nd Vlce-PrBsldent
BEVERLY OOMETRORCH

Allernate NACO Member
2670 Highway 240

Fayelle, MO 65248
(660) 248-2645

3rd Vlce~Presldent

BEN GORDEN
2282 E. 460'" Road

HaifWay,MO 65663
(417) 328-8899

Past PresldBnt
STEVE RADCLIFF

PO Box 571
Chillicothe, MO 64601

(660) 247-1255
stevenr@greonhllls.nel

AREA DIRECTORS

Areal
BRUCE BIERMANN

1529 Sunset Blvd
Mound City. MO 64470

(660) 491-5263

Arellll
TOM LAMBERT

15214123'" Street
Paltonsburg. MO 64670

(660) 425-0619

Area III
RYAN BRITT

11764 Highway 3
Clillon Hill, MO 65244

(660) 676-4898

Area IV
BEVERLY OOMETRORCH

2670 Highway 240
Fayelle. MO 65248

(660) 248-2645

ArBaV
GEORGE ENGELBACH

3489 linhorst Roed
Hillsboro. MO 63050

(636) 475-6328

Area VI
BEN GORDEN

2282 E. 460'· Road
HalfWay. M065663

(417) 328-8899

Area VII
DAN GREESON

29 Pin Oak Road
Eldon. MO 65206

(573) 392-3208

Aroa VIII
MIKE KelLEY
RR2 Box 4805

Ellsinoro. MO 63937
(314) 753-1730

Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districtssv~ "

December 3,2012
Execullvo Director
PEGGY LEMONS
1209 Biscayno Drive
Jefferson City, MO 65109
(573) 893-6790 or 893-5188
~ggy.!@nt~·ii:d.l.!§l

Treasurer
HENRY HEINZE
RR 1 Box76
Williamstown. MO 63473
(660) 988-3901
b!:!h@!!larklwaln ne!

MO Department of Natural Resources
Soil & Water Districts Commission
PO Box 176
Jefferson City, MO 65102

Commissioners:

Enclosed is the resolution passed at the 2012 Annual Meeting of the
Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts held
November 27, 2012.

Also enclosed is a motion that was passed at the 2012 Annual Meeting which
we would appreciate discussion and action on from the Missouri State Soil &
Water Commission.

.We appreciate your consideration of this resolution and motion.

t2relY~~

K~velace pL
MASWCD President

cc: Soil & Water Commissioners

CONSERVATION - DEVELOPMENT - SELF-GOVERNMENT



RESOLUTIONS
November 2012 Training Conference

Resolution # 2012-1
Perry County SWCD

Whereas, tilling the soil and leaving it without a ground cover is one of the worst things that can be done on
fields that are highly erodible. Planting with no-till planters and drills is the most effective method to use to
prevent erosion on these fields, and

Whereas, the equipment is so expensive that many farmers do not have enough acres to justify buying
newer planting equipment but they would rent no-till equipment if theywere available, and

Whereas, many districts cannot afford to buy or replace existing no-till equipment without a matching grant
program;

Therefore, be it resolved: that the Missouri Association of Soil and Water Conservation Districts urge the
Missouri Soil and Water Commission to reinstate the matching grant program to districts for no-till equipment.

Passed - Yes - 51 / No - 0'

Motion Presented and Approved at the 2012 MASWCD Annual Business Meeting

David Morris, supervisor from Livingston County stated his district did not feel the funds for outsourcing the
payroll should be provided to a district in addition to their other funding. He read from the job description of
the Program Specialist which states that payroll is part of that position's duties. He stated Livingston County
would like to make a motion that the cost of the outsourcing of the payroll come from a district's $5500
administrative fund with no additional reimbursement from the Program Office. DeKalb County secondedthe
motion. One comment in support of outsourcing, no other comments.

Passed - Yes -- 39



SUPERVISORS
Martin Strauser, Chairman
Shirley Turnbough, Vice-Chairman
Frank Meyers, Treasurer
Lynn Heins, Secretary
James Phares, Board Member

October 3, 2013

Dear Commissioners:

WASHINGTON COUNTY SOIL AND
WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT

103 N. MISSOURI STREET
POTOSI, MO 63664

PHONE (573) 438-9214

E-:1-A

STAFF
Rhonda Davault, NRCS Conservationist

Jeff Dierking. MDC PLC
Tiffany Woods, Technician

This letter is to inform you that Frank Meyers, Board Treasurer, has resigned his position
as a supervisor for the Washington County Soil.and Water Conservation District affective
September 30,2013. We would like to appoint George Richards to fill the remainder of
his term as a board supervisor.

Washington County SWCD Board of Supervisors



Candidate Signature:

VERIFICATION OF SUPERVISOR ELIGIBILITY

To qualify for office, according to Missouri's Code of State Regulations,
10 CSR 70-2.020, Conduct of Supervisor Elections, a candidate shall:

1) Be a land representative as defined by "The owner, or representative authorized by power of
attorney, ofany farm lying within the soil and water conservation district (SWCD); provided,

however, that any land representative must be a taxpayer of the county within which the SWCD
is located," and

2) Be a resident taxpaying citizen within that SWCD for two (2) years preceding the appointment
to the District Board of Supervisors by the Commission, and

3) Be a cooperator ofthe SWCD defined as "A person who is actively involved in farming and
practices conservation activities related to agriculture," and

4) Reside in or own a farm lying in the same territory where the board position is vacant.

The undersigned certify that the candidate meets all of the above stated eligibility requirements
to serve as a supervisor for the Washington County Soil d Water Conservation District.

Ch . ( ing) S' I ~~~..lI-~~~~"!1J-"Date" I ) - J.... I'all-person or acting ignature: _ .....:J

-e~~g~~~~~~Dare:4~o,· 2-d I;J

IX-IS 05/0112011



To:
From:
Date:
Subj:

Washington County SWCD Board of Supervisors
Frank J. Meyers
September 23, 2013
-Resignation, submission of

To the Board of Supervisors:

It has been my pleasure to have been a member of this board for the

last several years. However, an increasing workload has necessitated

that I devote more time to the consulting practice that has been my

occupation. Therefore, I hereby tender my resignation from the

Washington County SWCD Board, effective September 30, 2013.

I am grateful for the opportunity to have had a place on the board

and have enjoyed working with all of you on it.

Sincerely,

~k~


